CITY OF WINNIPEG PROJECT NUMBER: CA0000644.3039

# PHASE I ENVIRONMENTAL SITE ASSESSMENT ST. JAMES CIVIC CENTRE, WINNIPEG, MB

MAY 29, 2023

115

CONFIDENTIAL



# vsp



## PHASE I ENVIRONMENTAL SITE ASSESSMENT ST. JAMES CIVIC CENTRE, WINNIPEG, MB

**CITY OF WINNIPEG** 

CONFIDENTIAL

PROJECT NO.: CA0000644.3039 DATE: MAY 29, 2023

WSP 1600 BUFFALO PLACE WINNIPEG, MB CANADA R3T 6B8

T: +1 204 477-6650 F: +1 204 474-2864 WSP.COM

WSP Canada Inc.

# vsp

May 29, 2023

CONFIDENTIAL

City of Winnipeg 4th Floor 185 King Street Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 1J1

#### Attention: Ms. Kathy Roberts

Ms. Roberts,

## Subject: Phase I Environmental Site Assessment – St. James Civic Centre, Winnipeg, MB

Please find attached the results of the Phase I Environmental Site Assessment for the property with the civic address of 2055 Ness Avenue, Winnipeg, Manitoba.

The Phase I ESA was completed in general accordance with the Canadian Standards Association's Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Standard CZ768-01 (R2016).

Should you have any questions regarding the information presented in this report, please contact the undersigned at your convenience.

Yours sincerely,

Bijan

Cassie Bujan, B.Env.Sc., Project Scientist, Earth & Environment

CB/ac

WSP ref.: CA0000644.3039

Afler .

Alfred Chan, B.Sc.Geol., P.Geo., PMP Project Manager, Earth & Environment

1600 BUFFALO PLACE WINNIPEG, MB CANADA R3T 6B8

T: +1 204 477-6650 F: +1 204 474-2864 wsp.com

# REVISION HISTORY

#### FIRST ISSUE

April 28, 2023	DRAFT		
Prepared by	Reviewed by	Approved by	
Cassie Bujan	Alfred Chan	Alfred Chan	
REVISION 1			
May 8, 2023	FINAL		
Prepared by	Reviewed by	Approved by	
Cassie Bujan	Alfred Chan	Alfred Chan	

#### FINAL REV.2

May 29, 2023	Revision 2 with additional documents from the oil spill clean up provided by the Client.			
Prepared by	Reviewed by	Approved by		
Cassie Bujan	Alfred Chan	Alfred Chan		

## SIGNATURES

PREPARED BY

Bijan

May 29, 2023

Cassie Bujan, B.Env.Sc. Project Scientist Date

APPROVED<sup>1</sup> BY

Alle -

May 29, 2023

Alfred Chan, B.Sc.Geol., P.Geo., PMP Project Scientist Date

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Approval of this document is an administrative function indicating readiness for release and does not impart legal liability on to the Approver for any technical content contained herein. Technical accuracy and fit-for-purpose of this content is obtained through the review process. The Approver shall ensure the applicable review process has occurred prior to signing the document.

# EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

WSP Canada Inc. (WSP) was retained by the City of Winnipeg (Client) to conduct a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) of a property consisting of a large two-storey on-site building with a basement and a mezzanine and an adjacent asphalt-paved parking lot with the legal land description Part Lot 1 and Lots 2 to 15, both inclusive, Block 13, and Lots 3 to 6, both inclusive, Block 14, Plan No. 1617; Part Lot 27 and Lots 29 to 42, both inclusive, Block 22, and Part Lot 1 and Lots 2 to 15, both inclusive, Block 23, Plan No. 1693 and Part Guildford Street, Closed by Instrument No. G47980 and the civic address of 2055 Ness Avenue, herein referred to as the 'Site'.

The Phase I ESA was conducted for the City of Winnipeg in support of a new building addition proposed at the south elevation of the existing main Site building. The site visit was conducted by WSP Project Scientist, Ms. Cassie Bujan on April 11, 2023. The Site and readily visible and publicly accessible portions of adjoining and neighbouring properties were observed for the presence of potential sources of environmental concern. WSP was escorted during the site visit by Ms. Kathy Roberts, the Client representative at the time of the site visit.

A Phase I ESA does not include sampling or testing of air, soil, groundwater, surface water or building materials. The Phase I ESA was visually inspected only from readily accessible areas of the Site. An intrusive sampling investigation was not conducted. For this Phase I ESA, no additions to the CSA standards were made.

### ENVIRONMENTAL DATABASE/RECORDS REVIEW

A records review of the Site was completed using a variety of information sources and summarized as follows:

- A total of 17 title certificates (2302345/1, 2423973/1, 2459204/1, 2392235/1, 2549013/1, 2421830/1, 355326, 401746, 359435, 398399, 402865, 430215, 416051, 450804, 524985, 409327 and 413069) were reviewed for the Site. Six of the title certificates are registered to the City of Winnipeg and eleven are registered to the Rural Municipality of St. James. There are no caveats or liens in the land titles that appear to indicate an environmental concern to the Site.
- Historic aerial photographs indicated the Site was previously a cleared, maintained area with patches of forest and a gravel parking lot to the east since 1948 with little to no change until the 1968 aerial photograph. Post-1968, the adjacent Assiniboine Golf Course and associated site building has been established, along with the current day St. James Civic Centre site building and parking lot to the south.
- Six ERIS Ecolog listings were found for the Site and surrounding properties within 250 m. Two of the on-site listings are identical and referenced the Site as a registered waste generator site with registration number MBG07509. The other three off-site waste generator listings are identical and reference Assiniboine Golf Club (2045 Ness Avenue) under registration number MBG10294. One off-site listing in Scott's Manufacturing Directory references Weatherwise Tent Rentals on 382 Belvidere Street located approximately 200 m southeast of Site.
- A request was made to MEC on March 16, 2023, for a search of their databases for any reported information regarding spills, environmental infractions, hazardous wastes, listing on the Contaminated Sites registry and/or any remediation actions pertaining to the Site. A response from MEC received on March 31, 2023 (File Search No. 6582) indicated that the Site is listed as an operating Registered Hazardous Waste Generator (operational ID 29965) with associated registration number MBG10294..
- Personal communication with Mr. Larry Santucci (Arena Foreman for the City of Winnipeg) during the site visit revealed that an oil spill of approximately 454 litres had occurred at the northwest corner of the Site building. Email communication with Ms. Kathy Roberts further clarified that upon discovery of the oil spill, City of Winnipeg staff laid down a large quantity of absorb-all, and Miller Environmental was retained to remove the oil-impacted debris in drums. An additional drum of oil rags was also removed by Miller Environmental. Movement documents from Miller Environmental are included in Appendix E-3.
- A water well database search was conducted through the MEC GWDrill (2018) database for the Site on March 16, 2023. The search as conducted using the Site's legal land Parish of St. James, by plotting all the well logs

from the data file on Google Earth and acquiring the Well PID's of all well logs within 250 m of the Site. No well logs were registered within 250 m of the Site.

### SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

Based on the results of the Phase I ESA, a highlight of findings for the Site is as follows:

- Land parcels within the Site are registered to the client (the City of Winnipeg) and to the Rural Municipality of St. James. There are no caveats or liens in the land titles that appear to indicate an environmental concern to the Site.
- Historic aerial photographs indicate the Site was primarily vacant land prior to 1968 before being developed with a large on-site building similar to the present-day St. James Civic Centre. No ASTs nor stockpiles were observed to be present on-site and adjacent properties for each of the historical aerial photographs reviewed.
- Results from the ERIS Ecolog search referenced the Site and the north adjacent Assiniboine Golf Club as registered Waste Generators. None of the off-site listings are anticipated to pose an environmental concern to the Site. The Site likely generates used lubricating oil for the compressors servicing the Arena and functions as a transfer depot for recyclable wastes. On-site waste generation is not anticipated to be a significant environmental concern with proper housekeeping and storage.
- An MEC File Search response received on March 31 (File Search No. 6582) indicate that the Site is not listed as having any outstanding environmental orders, nor is it registered as having a file under the MEC Contaminated or Impacted Sites Program. The Site is not listed as a registered petroleum storage site.
- Based on personal communication with Mr. Larry Santucci, the Arena Foreman, during the interview with Client representatives on-site, an oil spill of approximately 454 litres had previously occurred at the northwest corner of the Site building with surficial clean-up with absorb-all completed by City of Winnipeg staff and oilimpacted debris removed by Miller Environmental on October 12, 2022. As the there may be residual petroleum hydrocarbons impacts in the subsurface from seepage between the oil spill and the clean-up attempt, the northwest corner of the Site building exterior is identified as an Area of Potential Environmental Concern (APEC).
- Based on the age of the Site building construction (1965), asbestos-containing materials, lead paint, ODS, mercury-containing equipment, and PCB-containing equipment may be present on-site.

### RECOMMENDATIONS

Based on the findings of the Phase I ESA, WSP recommends the following:

- Continued good housekeeping of lubricating oil, cleaning and chemical supplies on-site; ensure that the liquid ammonia storage area is inaccessible to the public and is well ventilated at all times.
- Prior to any renovation or demolition work, it is recommended to conduct a Hazardous Materials Assessment as the original building structure was constructed in 1965. There may be additional unconfirmed locations with asbestos-containing materials, lead paint, mercury-containing equipment, and polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB)-containing equipment present on-site.
- Due to excessive moisture reported under the crawlspace of the arena, an odour of stagnant water present in the boiler room, water-stained ceiling tiles and the age of the building, it is recommended that an Indoor Air Quality and Fungal Assessment be conducted should there be reports from building occupants regarding respiratory irritations or musty odours indoors.
- A Limited Phase II ESA is recommended based on the identified APEC located at the northwest Site building corner associated with an oil spill in 2022. As a large quantity of absorb-all was used in the contaminant source removal at ground surface, the main objective of the Limited Phase II ESA would be to determine the presence or absence of residual impacts in the subsurface associated with the oil spill. Based on the results of the limited Phase II ESA, several outcomes are possible:

- Ideal Scenario: If soil contaminant parameters are below applicable guidelines for all soil samples, it is likely that impacts were limited to near surface, mostly removed by absorbent pads, and residual concentrations do not pose a threat to human and ecological health. No further environmental work may be necessary.
- Realistic Scenario: If soil contaminant parameters exceed guidelines for certain soil samples but are limited to a confirmed depth and lateral extent, i.e. soil samples have no exceedances below a certain depth or past a certain lateral distance from spill, then the soil impact plume can be considered delineated and an estimated volume of soil requiring remediation can be provided to the Province for approval to conduct remedial activities.
- Undesirable Scenario: If soil contaminant parameters exceed guidelines for certain soil samples, but cannot be delineated with a defined soil impact plume boundary during the limited Phase II ESA (i.e. the deepest soil samples from the Limited Phase II ESA exceeds guidelines, and deeper soil samples could not be obtained for vertical delineation that they do not exceed guidelines), then a Phase II ESA involving a drill rig and the installation of monitoring wells for the assessment of groundwater impacts may be required to determine the estimated volume of soil and groundwater impacts at depth.

The statements made in this Executive Summary are subject to WSP Canada Inc's Standard Limitations found in **Appendix F** of this report and should be read in its entirety with the remainder of this report.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXEC	UTIVE SUMMARY	Ш
Enviror	nmental Database/Records Review	.iii
Summa	ary of Findings	.iv
Recom	mendations	.iv
1	GENERAL INFORMATION	. 1
2	INTRODUCTION	.2
2.1	Objectives	2
2.2	Scope of Work	2
3	REGULATORY FRAMEWORK	. 3
4	SITE DESCRIPTION	.4
4.1	Property Information	4
4.2	On-site Buildings and Structures	4
4.3	Physical Setting	6
4.3.1	Surface Water Drainage	6
4.3.2	Soil and Surficial Geology	6
4.3.3	Topography, Groundwater and Regional Drainage	6
4.3.4	Bedrock Geology	7
5	SUMMARY OF RECORDS REVIEWED	. 8
6	DISCUSSION OF FINDINGS	. 9
6.1	Records Review	9
6.1.1	Land Titles	9
6.1.2	Aerial Photographs	10
6.1.3	Ecolog ERIS Database Search	13
6.1.4	Regulatory Agency Files and Databases	13
6.1.5	Water Well Database Search	13
6.2	Site Visit and Interviews	13
6.3	Current Site Operations	13

6.4	Waste Generation and Storage	14
6.4.1	Solid Waste	. 14
6.4.2	Liquid and Sewage Waste	. 14
6.4.3	Drains and Sumps	. 14
6.4.4	Air Discharges and Odours	. 14
6.5	Fuel and Chemical Storage	14
6.5.1	Underground Storage Tanks	. 14
6.5.2	Aboveground Storage Tanks (ASTs)	. 14
6.6	Other Storage Containers	14
6.7	Exterior Site Observations	15
6.7.1	Stressed or Stained Vegetation	. 15
6.7.2	Surface Stains	. 15
6.7.3	Fill Materials	. 15
6.7.4	Wells	. 15
6.7.5	Pits and Lagoons	. 15
6.7.6	Watercourses, Ditches or Standing Water	. 15
6.7.7	Roads, Parking Facilities and Railway Rights-of-Way	. 16
6.8	Hazardous Building Materials	16
6.8.1	Asbestos-Containing Materials (ACMs)	. 16
6.8.2	Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs)	. 16
6.8.3	Lead-Based Materials	. 17
6.8.4	Urea Formaldehyde Foam Insulation (UFFI)	. 17
6.8.5	Ozone Depleting Substances (ODSs)	. 17
6.9	Special Attention Items	17
6.9.1	Microbial Contamination (Mould) and Indoor Air Quality	. 17
6.9.2	Electromagnetic Fields (EMFs)	. 17
6.9.3	Noise and Vibration	. 18
6.9.4	Interior Surface Stains	. 18
6.10	Adjoining Property Information	18

7	SUMMARY OF FINDINGS	20
8	RECOMMENDATIONS	21
9	STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS	22
10	QUALIFICATION OF ASSESSORS	23

#### **TABLES**

TABLE 1. BUILDING AND STRUCTURE
DESCRIPTIONS5
TABLE 2. SUMMARY OF HISTORICAL RECORD
RESOURCES8
TABLE 3. LAND TITLE CERTIFICATES SUMMARY9
TABLE 4. HISTORICAL AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH
SUMMARY11
TABLE 5. CURRENT AND HISTORIC ACTIVITIES
CONDUCTED ON NEIGHBOURING
PROPERTIES18

#### **APPENDICES**

- A FIGURES
- B PHOTOGRAPHS
- **C** LAND TITLES
- D AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS
- E SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS
  - E-1 ERIS ECOLOG SEARCH RESULTS
  - E-2 MEC FILE SEARCH
  - E-3 MOVEMENT DOCUMENTS (MILLER ENVIRONMENTAL)
- F CONDITIONS AND LIMITATIONS

# **1 GENERAL INFORMATION**

#### SITE LOCATION

#### Legal Land Description:

Part Lot 1 and Lots 2 to 15, both inclusive, Block 13, and Lots 3 to 6, both inclusive, Block 14, Plan No. 1617; Part Lot 27 and Lots 29 to 42, both inclusive, Block 22, and Part Lot 1 and Lots 2 to 15, both inclusive, Block 23, Plan No. 1693 and Part Guildford Street, Closed by Instrument No. G47980 (Roll No. 7051908000)

#### **Civic Address:**

2055 Ness Avenue, Winnipeg, Manitoba

#### SITE REPRESENTATIVE

Ms. Kathy Roberts, Project Officer for the City of Winnipeg

Mr. Larry Santucci, Arena Foreman for the City of Winnipeg

#### **CLIENT**

City of Winnipeg

#### CONSULTANT

WSP Canada Inc. 1600 Buffalo Place Winnipeg, MB R3T 6B8 PH: 204-477-6650 Website: <u>wsp.com</u>

## SITE VISIT DATE: April 11, 2023

REPORT DATE: May 29, 2023

# 2 INTRODUCTION

### 2.1 OBJECTIVES

WSP Canada Inc. (WSP) was retained by the City of Winnipeg to conduct a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) of a property consisting of a large on-site building and an adjacent parking lot with the legal land description Part Lot 1 and Lots 2 to 15, both inclusive, Block 13, and Lots 3 to 6, both inclusive, Block 14, Plan No. 1617; Part Lot 27 and Lots 29 to 42, both inclusive, Block 22, and Part Lot 1 and Lots 2 to 15, both inclusive, Block 23, Plan No. 1693 and Part Guildford Street, Closed by Instrument No. G47980 (Roll No. 7051908000) and the civic address of 2055 Ness Avenue, herein referred to as the 'Site'.

The Phase I ESA was conducted for the City of Winnipeg in support of a new building addition proposed at the south elevation of the existing main Site building. The objective of the Phase I ESA was to evaluate the current and historical conditions of the Site and neighbouring properties and to identify any issues of potential environmental concerns that may exist in connection with the Site and surrounding properties.

A site plan is included in Appendix A and selected photographs of the Site are included in Appendix B.

## 2.2 SCOPE OF WORK

The Phase I ESA carried out at the Site by WSP was conducted in general accordance with the Canadian Standards Association's (CSA) Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Standard CZ768-01 (R2016) and included the following:

- Records review, including but not limited to, publicly available land titles, aerial photographs, and groundwater well reports, geological and topographic maps.
- Provincial government regulatory search.
- Review of Environmental Risk Information Service (ERIS) Ecolog Report.
- A site visit of the property and publicly accessible neighbouring properties.
- Review of previous environmental reports if any are available; and
- Evaluation of information and preparation of this report.

A Phase I ESA does not include sampling or testing of air, soil, groundwater, surface water or building materials. The Phase I ESA was visually assessed from readily accessible areas of the Site. An intrusive sampling investigation was not conducted. For this Phase I ESA, no additions to the CSA standards were made.

The site visit was conducted by WSP Project Scientist, Ms. Cassie Bujan on April 11, 2023. The Site and readily visible and publicly accessible portions of adjoining and neighboring properties were observed for the presence of potential sources of environmental concern. WSP was escorted during the Site visit and conducted an interview with Ms. Kathy Roberts, Project Officer and Mr. Larry Santucci, Arena Foreman.

# **3 REGULATORY FRAMEWORK**

A Phase I ESA investigation involves the evaluation and reporting of existing information for the site property and associated buildings collected through records review, a site visit, and interviews with person(s) knowledgeable of the current and former site activities. This includes an assessment for the potential presence of hazardous materials associated with site activities and/or building structures. Federal and provincial regulations, guidelines and codes of practice exist for hazardous materials and where applicable, are considered during the Phase I ESA investigation to determine appropriate conclusions and recommendations.

A Phase I ESA does not comprise a Hazardous Materials Survey or Designated Substances Survey, nor does it include a systematic review or audit of operational compliance issues, or of any environmental management systems which may exist for the Site.

# **4 SITE DESCRIPTION**

## 4.1 PROPERTY INFORMATION

The Site is approximately 6.3 acres (2.5 hectares) and is zoned as "PR2-PRKS&REC-ACTIVE" on the City of Winnipeg Online Map of Assessment Parcels. The Site consists of a large commercial building and an adjacent asphalt-paved parking lot to the south. The Site is surrounded by open land (designated as a golf course) to the north and west, with residential housing to the south and east.

### 4.2 ON-SITE BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES

Ms. Kathy Roberts, Project Officer for the City of Winnipeg, provided WSP with existing building plans and the proposed building expansion plan for the St. James Civic Centre. The St. James Civic Centre can be described as a two-storey building containing an Arena (north section), fitness centre, pool, lobby and auditorium, (west to east in the main section) on the main floor, electrical, mechanical and boiler rooms on the second floor, and a basement under the middle section of the building with two separate crawlspaces under the Arena and southern portion of the building.

#### Table 1. Building and Structure Descriptions

Structure Identification (Year of Construction)	Area and Use	Construction Details
Structure Identification (Year of Construction) Existing Site Building – Arena, Pool, Auditorium (1965), Fitness Room Expansion (1982).	Area and UseThe total area of the Sitebuilding footprint isapproximately 5,337 m². Themiddle portion of the Sitebuilding has a full basementwith a crawlspace present underthe entire arena to the north. It islocated within a 2.3-acre lot inthe northern portion of the Siteand occupies approximately32% of the lot. The remaining68% of the lot area consist ofpaved parking areas, drive isles,landscaped areas, and outdoorcourtyards.Exterior parking at the Sitebuilding can be accessed fromthe south and east through NessAvenue and Woodlawn Street,respectively. The main entrance	Construction Details The exterior parking areas are asphalt paved with slight slopes towards catch basins connected to stormwater sewers. Asphalt pavement and graded gravel surround the building to the north, west and east sides. The south, front of the building is vegetated with grass and few large trees. The Site building exterior consists predominantly of cement soffits or brick veneer over insulated sheathing. Zonolite is the reported insulation used in construction for the main building. Roofing material consists of metal sheeting with the downspouts draining precipitation run- off from the roof into water catch basins connected to the site drainage system along the west side of the building.
	Exterior parking at the Site building can be accessed from the south and east through Ness Avenue and Woodlawn Street, respectively. The main entrance of the building is located at the south elevation of the St. James Civic Centre.	<ul> <li>with the downspouts draining precipitation runoff from the roof into water catch basins connected to the site drainage system along the west side of the building.</li> <li>The structure of the Site building consists of wood beams and steel columns built upon a ground floor concrete slab supported by concrete piles and grade beam foundation. A crawlspace exists under the main floor of the Arena section of the building.</li> <li>Interior finishing includes drywalls, concrete blocks, floor tiles, vinyl floor tiles, carpet, sheet vinyl flooring, wall tiles, wood molding sound proofing coding (pool roof).</li> <li>According to engineered drawings provided by the Client, the snow dumping pit and associated plumbing for the Arena was last renovated in 1976, the refrigeration system in the Arena was at the north portion of the Site building was upgraded in 1978, and the Zamboni Room was renovated in 1993. The</li> </ul>
		Auditorium was renovated in 1989 with partition walls, paint and exterior finishes. The Fitness Room was added onto the west portion of the Site building as an expansion in 1982. The entire building envelope was retrofitted and renovated in 1996.

Several rooms could not be accessed as they were locked, and a key was not available during the Site visit:

- The St. James Canucks dressing room;
- The Water treatment room in the fitness room mezzanine;
- An office in the west corridor;
- The Electrical room in the basement; and
- The Pool mechanical room.

### 4.3 PHYSICAL SETTING

#### 4.3.1 SURFACE WATER DRAINAGE

The Site is generally level with general slopes from west to east towards city ditches along roadways. At the time of the site visit there was snow covering the entire Site.

A review of the Natural Resources Canada interactive map indicates agricultural drains and ditches located on-site and in the local vicinity generally flow southeast towards the Assiniboine River.

#### 4.3.2 SOIL AND SURFICIAL GEOLOGY

The soil on-site is anticipated to consist predominantly of fine textured sediments of Fort Garry clay, that generally identifies as clay over light grey to pale yellow sandy clay calcareous subsoil. Fort Garry clay consists of blackearth soils developed on lacustrine fine clay deposits in the central basin of glacial Lake Agassiz. Due to differences in drainage or moisture regime, different soil types with varying morphological features can develop on the same fine textured clay parent material (Ehrlich, Poyser, Pratt and Ellis, 1953). According to Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada's Soils of Canada Interactive Map, the dominant soils in the Site prior to development are Vertisolic (98%) and Regosolic (2%).

The surficial geology in the area consists of offshore glaciolacustrine sediments and alluvial sediments. Glaciolacustrine sediments consists of clay, silt and minor sand and are 1-20 metres (m) thick. These sediments were deposited from suspension in offshore, deep water of the glacial Lake Agassiz and were commonly scoured by icebergs. Alluvial sediments consist of sand and gravel, sand, silt, clay and organic detritus. They are also 1-20 m in thickness and are deposited as channel and overbank sediments and reworked by existing rivers and deposited as bars (Matile and Keller, 2004).

#### 4.3.3 TOPOGRAPHY, GROUNDWATER AND REGIONAL DRAINAGE

The Site topography is primarily level with surface flows infiltrating directly into the ground or into the city sewage waterway system through ditches adjacent to the roadways.

A review of the topographic map for the area (Natural Resources Canada, 2021) indicates the Site is located at approximately between 235 to 240 m above sea level (masl) with an anticipated local down gradient flow (shallow groundwater flow direction) to the southeast.

Regional groundwater flow is anticipated to be primarily southeast, downgradient towards the Truro Creek approximately 300 m east, that further drains south to the Assiniboine River which is approximately 940 m south of the southernmost site boundary.

It is important to note that local shallow groundwater flow direction can be affected by the presence of underground utility corridors and fill materials and may not necessarily reflect the regional or local groundwater flow or area topography.

#### 4.3.4 BEDROCK GEOLOGY

According to a geological map of Manitoba, the bedrock geology at the Site mainly consists of the Gunton Member of the Stony Mountain Formation from the Ordovician period. The Gunton member is the lower portion of the formation and consists of nodular dense dolomite (Manitoba Energy and Mines, 1990). The northeastern corner of the Site consists of the Fort Garry Member of the Red River Formation also from the Ordovician period. The Fort Garry member consists of massive to laminated dolomite, minor argillaceous dolomite and high-calcium limestone (Manitoba Energy and Mines, 1990).

# **5 SUMMARY OF RECORDS REVIEWED**

A summary of the records reviewed in support of the Phase I ESA is outlined in Table 2.

#### **Table 2. Summary of Historical Record Resources**

PARAMETER	REFERENCE
Aerial Photographs	Canada Map Sales. Dates: 1948, 1959, 1968, 1979, and 1988.
	Google Earth™ Satelite Review: 2010, 2020.
Land Titles	Teranet Manitoba, The Property Registry, Titles Online.
ECOLOG ERIS Environmental Database Search	ERIS EcoLog Database Report. Standard Report. Order 23031600501.
Fire Insurance Plans	None accessed.
City Directories	None accessed.
Previous Environmental Reports	N/A
Geological and Geotechnical Reports	<ol> <li>Ehrlich, W.A., Poyser, E.A., Pratt, L.E., Ellis, J.H., 1953. Report of reconnaissance soil survey of Winnipeg and Morris map sheet areas. Soils Report No. 5. Manitoba Soil Survey, Manitoba Department of Agriculture, Winnipeg, Manitoba.</li> </ol>
	<ol> <li>Manitoba Energy and Mines. 1990. Bedrock Geology Compilation Map Series, Winnipeg, NTS 62H, 1:250,000.</li> </ol>
	<ol> <li>Matile, G.L.D. and Keller, G.R. 2004: Surficial geology of the Winnipeg map sheet (NTS 62H), Manitoba; Manitoba Industry, Economic Development and Mines, Manitoba Geological Survey, Surficial Geology Compilation Map Series, SG-62H, scale 1:250 000.</li> </ol>
	4. Natural Resources Canada. 2021. Geogratis: Toporama. Accessed March 2023.
	<ol> <li>Natural Resources Canada. 2021. Open Maps Viewer: National Hydrographic Network. Accessed October 2021.</li> </ol>
Environmental Infractions and Orders	Manitoba Environment and Climate file searches. File No. 6582.
Reportable Spill/Release Occurrences	Manitoba Environment and Climate file searches. File No. 6582.
Contaminated Sites	Manitoba Environment and Climate file searches. File No. 6582.
Environmental Approvals, Licenses, Registrations, and Permits	Manitoba Environment and Climate file searches. File No. 6582.
Underground and Aboveground Storage Tanks	Manitoba Environment and Climate file searches. File No. 6582.
Water Well Records	1. GWDrill Well Search Database. 2018. Manitoba Environment and Climate.
	2. ERIS EcoLog Database Report. Standard Report. Order 23031600501.

# 6 DISCUSSION OF FINDINGS

### 6.1 RECORDS REVIEW

- A total of 17 title certificates (2302345/1, 2423973/1, 2459204/1, 2392235/1, 2549013/1, 2421830/1, 355326, 401746, 359435, 398399, 402865, 430215, 416051, 450804, 524985, 409327 and 413069) were reviewed for the Site. Six of the title certificates are registered to the City of Winnipeg and eleven are registered to the Rural Municipality of St. James. There are no caveats or liens in the land titles that appear to indicate an environmental concern to the Site.
- Aerial photographs indicated the Site was previously a cleared, maintained area with patches of forest and a
  gravel parking lot to the east since 1948 with little to no change until the 1968 aerial photograph. Post-1968, the
  adjacent Assiniboine Golf Course and associated site building has been established, along with the current day
  St. James Civic Centre site building and parking lot to the south.
- Six ERIS Ecolog listings were found for the Site and surrounding properties within 250 m. Two of the on-site listings are identical and referenced the Site as a registered waste generator site with registration number MBG07509. The other three off-site waste generator listings are identical and reference Assiniboine Golf Club (2045 Ness Avenue) under registration number MBG10294. One off-site listing in Scott's Manufacturing Directory references Weatherwise Tent Rentals on 382 Belvidere Street located approximately 200 m southeast of Site.
- A request was made to MEC on March 16, 2023, for a search of their databases for any reported information regarding spills, environmental infractions, hazardous wastes, listing on the Contaminated Sites registry and/or any remediation actions pertaining to the Site. A response from MEC received on March 31, 2023 (File Search No. 6582) indicated that the Site is listed as an operating Registered Hazardous Waste Generator (operational ID 29965) with associated registration number MBG10294.
- A water well database search was conducted through the MEC GWDrill (2018) database for the Site on March 16, 2023. The search as conducted using the Site's legal land Parish of St. James, by plotting all the well logs from the data file on Google Earth and acquiring the Well PID's of all well logs within 250 m of the Site. No well logs were registered within 250 m of the Site.

Based on the records review, the Site does not have subject properties that are designated impacted, nor contaminated.

#### 6.1.1 LAND TITLES

Land titles for the Site were requested from The Property Registry, Teranet Manitoba. Details of the current titles are below (**Table 3**), and copies of the titles can be found in **Appendix C**.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION	OWNERS	DATE OF REGISTRATION	TITLE NUMBER	ORIGINATING TITLE NUMBER
Lot 4, Block 13, Plan 1617 WLTO in RL 22 to 25 Parish of St. James	The City of Winnipeg	October 4, 2010	2421830/1	3989018/1
Lots 13, 14 and 17 to 21, Block 13 and Lot 2,	The City of Winnipeg	April 20, 2011	2549013/1	4062121/1
Block 19, Plan 1617 WLTO in RL 22 to 25 Parish				
of St. James				
Lot 4, Block 14, Plan 1617 WLTO in RL 22 to 25	The City of Winnipeg	August 18, 2010	2392235/1	3968025/1
Parish of St. James				

#### Table 3. Land Title Certificates Summary

Lots 1, 2 and 3, Block 13, Plan 1617 WLTO	The City of Winnipeg	January 6, 2011	2459204/1	4025592/1
except out of said Lot 1 the Sly feet in RL 22 to				
25 Parish of St. James				
Lots 5 and 6, Block 14, Plan 1617 WLTO in RL	The City of Winnipeg	October 22, 2010	2423973/1	3997456/1
22 to 25 Parish of St. James				
Lots 1 to 7 inclusive and Lots 16 to 17 inclusive,	The City of Winnipeg	May 28, 2008	2302345/1	3619746/1
Block 23, Plan 1693 WLTO except out of Lot 1				
Ness Ave, Plan 1940 WLTO in RL 20 and 21				
Parish of St. James				
Lots 8, 14 and 15, Block 23, Plan 1693 WLTO in	The Rural Municipality	July 16, 1923	355326	172438
RL 20 and 21 Parish of St. James	of St. James			
Lots 8, 11, 12, 25 and 26, Block 13, Plan 1617	The Rural Municipality	April 9, 1927	401746	241344
WLTO in RL 22 to 25 Parish of St. James	of St. James			
Lots 7 to 10, 20 to 24, 27 to 32, 35 to 38, 40 to 54	The Rural Municipality	November 7, 1923	359435	172440
all inclusive, Block 22, Plan 1693 WLTO in RL 20	of St. James			
and 21 Parish of St. James.				
Lot 5, Block 13, Plan 1617 WLTO in RL 22 to 25	The Rural Municipality	January 4, 1907	398399	311813
in Parish of St. James	of St. James			
Lot 39, Block 22, Plan 1693 WLTO in RL 20 and	The Rural Municipality	May 3, 1927	402865	285763
21 Parish of St. James	of St. James			
Lots 15 and 16, Block 13, Plan 1617 WLTO in RL	The Rural Municipality	April 27, 1929	430215	383450
22 to 25 Parish of St. James	of St. James			
Lot 10, Block 13, Plan 1617 WLTO in RL 22 to 25	The Rural Municipality	April 2, 1928	416051	313049
Parish of St. James	of St. James			
Lots 33 and 34, Block 22, Plan 1693 WLTO in RL	The Rural Municipality	January 3, 1931	450804	314323
20 and 21 Parish of St. James	of St. James			
Lots 9 to 13 inclusive, Block 23, Plan 1693 WLTO	The Rural Municipality	February 28, 1939	524985	485290
in RL 20 and 21 Parish of St. James	of St. James			
Lot 9, Block 13, Plan 1617 WLTO in RL 22 to 25	The Rural Municipality	October 10, 1927	409327	395061
Parish of St. James	of St. James			
Lot 6, Block 13, Plan 1617 WLTO in RL 22 to 25	The Rural Municipality	January 12, 1928	413069	333234
Parish of St. James	of St. James			

There are no caveats or liens in the land titles that appear to indicate an environmental concern to the Site.

#### 6.1.2 AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS

Selected aerial photographs obtained from Canada Map Sales included the dates 1948, 1959, 1968, 1979, and 1988 and were reviewed to determine former land use at the Site (**Appendix D**). A satellite image acquired from Google Earth<sup>TM</sup> was also reviewed but not reproduced for the report for the year 2010 and 2020. A summary of the aerial photography and satellite imagery observations for the Site is provided in Table 4.

Table 4. Historical	<b>Aerial Photo</b>	graph Summary
---------------------	---------------------	---------------

DATE	SOURCE	THE SITE	NORTH ADJACENT PROPERTY	SOUTH ADJACENT PROPERTY	EAST ADJACENT PROPERTY	WEST ADJACENT PROPERTY
1948	Canada Map Sales	A long driveway runs from the road along the south boundary of the Site, up to a large, gravelled cleared area. A small building is present near the north boundary of the Site with some potential outbuildings. Patches of mature trees and shrubs are present throughout the Site to the east and south. The western portion of the Site appears to be cleared and nicely maintained.	Most of the north adjacent property is cleared and nicely maintained, with patches of forest that appear to contain mature trees and shrubbery. Further north appears to be large commercial and industrial buildings with associated parking lots.	The southeastern adjacent properties have developed into an established residential community with what appears to be single- family houses. The southwestern adjacent property still contains mature forested areas but cleared areas have been established for future development into roadways and houses.	A farmstead is located just east of the Site near the southeast corner with a mature forested area surrounding the building. Most of the east adjacent property is cleared and nicely maintained with small patches of mature forest. Further east are several other small homesteads off the main road, Ness Avenue.	The west adjacent property is cleared and nicely maintained land with small patches of trees and shrubbery. Further west is Air Force Way, that runs north to south giving access to the commercial and industrial buildings to the north.
001959	Canada Map Sales	The graveled area appears to be a parking lot for a building located in the east adjacent property. Small outbuildings are observed to the north and southwest within the Site boundaries.	The land remains cleared and well maintained with patches of forested area. It appears the land has been developed into a golf course.	The southwestern adjacent properties have been fully developed into a single-family home community.	A large building has been built immediately east of the Site with a parking lot. Further development has occurred at the homestead locations with cleared areas and small outbuildings. The cleared, maintained land to the east appears to be a part of the new golf course.	It appears a golf course has been established with the land immediately west of the Site. Adjacent to Air Force Way, a residential community with single- family houses has been developed.
1968	Canada Map Sales	The northern half of the Site has been developed into the St. James Civic Centre building. Gravel parking areas run along the east and west of the buildings. The southern half of the Site has been established as a large asphalt parking pad. The small area of the Site to the east is covered by large, mature trees.	No substantial changes were apparent.	No substantial changes were apparent.	No substantial changes were apparent.	No substantial changes were apparent.
1979	Canada Map Sales	No substantial changes were apparent.	No substantial changes were apparent.	No substantial changes were apparent.	No substantial changes were apparent.	No substantial changes were apparent.

DATE	SOURCE	THE SITE	NORTH ADJACENT PROPERTY	SOUTH ADJACENT PROPERTY	EAST ADJACENT PROPERTY	WEST ADJACENT PROPERTY
1988	Canada Map Sales	No substantial changes were apparent.				
2010	Google Earth™	No substantial changes were apparent.	No substantial changes were apparent.			
2020	Google Earth™	No substantial changes were apparent.	No substantial changes were apparent.			

#### 6.1.3 ECOLOG ERIS DATABASE SEARCH

An ERIS EcoLog database search (**Appendix E-1**) of the Site and surrounding properties (0.25 kilometres) was conducted and revealed that the Site contains the following listings:

- Five listings were identified under the Waste Generators Summary, with two identical listings referring to . the Site at 2055 Ness Avenue (the St. James Civic Centre) and the other three identical listings are referencing the north adjacent property at 2045 Ness Avenue (Assiniboine Golf Club).
- One off-site listing was identified under Scott's Manufacturing Directory approximately 217 m from the center of the Site at Weatherwise Tent Rentals.

Additional databases requested included Chemical Manufacturers, Contaminated/Impacted Sites, Enforcement Actions, Fuel Storage Tanks, Bulk Fuel Distributors, Manure Storage Facilities, Inventory of PCB Storage Sites, Waste Receivers Summary, and Retail Fuel Storage Tanks. No results were received pertaining to the above databases for the Site and surrounding properties.

Three unplottable summaries were identified with one of the sites listed as a Bulk Fuel Distributor and the other two sites were listed under the Sustainable Development Public Registry. According to the location description of these three sites, they are located far from the Site and not anticipated to pose an environmental concern to the Site.

#### 6.1.4 REGULATORY AGENCY FILES AND DATABASES

A request was made to MEC on March 16, 2023, for a search of their databases for any reported information regarding spills, environmental infractions, hazardous wastes, listing on the Contaminated Sites registry and/or any remediation actions pertaining to the Site. A response from MEC received on March 31, 2023 (File Search No. 6582) indicated that the Site is listed as an operating Registered Hazardous Waste Generator (operational ID 29965) with associated registration number MBG10294. Copies of the MEC file search results can be found in **Appendix E-2**.

#### 6.1.5 WATER WELL DATABASE SEARCH

A water well database search was conducted through the MEC GWDrill (2018) database for the Site on March 16, 2023. The search was conducted using the Site's legal land Parish of St. James. Based on the Universal Traverse Mercator (UTM) coordinates provided in the GWDrill database, no well logs were registered within 250 m of the Site boundary.

### 6.2 SITE VISIT AND INTERVIEWS

The site visit was conducted by WSP Project Scientist, Ms. Cassie Bujan on April 11, 2023. The Site and readily visible and publicly accessible portions of adjoining and neighboring properties were observed for the presence of potential sources of environmental concern. WSP interviewed and was escorted by Kathy Roberts, Project Officer and Larry Santucci, the Arena Foreman from the City of Winnipeg.

At the time of the site visit, the ground was snow-covered, the weather consisted of sunny, clear skies and the temperature was approximately 11°C.

### 6.3 CURRENT SITE OPERATIONS

The northern half of the Site is currently a large recreational building including an arena, pool, fitness centre and auditorium. The southern half of the Site is used as an open parking lot with direct access to Ness Avenue. The southwest corner of the Site is used as a recycling facility with City of Winnipeg community recycling bins.

## 6.4 WASTE GENERATION AND STORAGE

#### 6.4.1 SOLID WASTE

Domestic waste generated by the Site building is collected in a single bin located on the east side of the building and is disposed of through scheduled collection by Green for Life (GFL). Along the west side of the parking lot, a total of 12 recycling bins are used by the City of Winnipeg residents for local drop off. ERIS Ecolog results indicate that the Site is listed as a waste generator.

#### 6.4.2 LIQUID AND SEWAGE WASTE

Sewage waste generated from the Site building is connected to the City of Winnipeg sewage system.

#### 6.4.3 DRAINS AND SUMPS

Due to snow cover, no drains or sumps were observed during the Site visit. The Site representative reported two catch basins along the west side of the Site and one along the east side, though they were not observed due to snow and water cover.

#### 6.4.4 AIR DISCHARGES AND ODOURS

No odour or air discharges of concern were identified on-site at the time of the site visit.

### 6.5 FUEL AND CHEMICAL STORAGE

#### 6.5.1 UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS

No evidence of underground storage tanks (USTs) was observed on-site at the time of the site visit (i.e. no vent pipes, fill pipes or other indicators of USTs) and none were reported as existing on the site by the Site representative.

#### 6.5.2 ABOVEGROUND STORAGE TANKS (ASTS)

No evidence of aboveground storage tanks (ASTs) was observed on-site at the time of the Site visit (i.e. no concrete pads, tank piping, dead vegetation or bare soil or other indicators of ASTs) and none were reported as existing on the Site by the Site representative.

### 6.6 OTHER STORAGE CONTAINERS

At the time of the Site visit, an ammonia storage room was observed in a room to the north of the ice rink in the Arena. The room was locked, and the Site representative confirmed an alarm system with sensors was present as a safety precaution in case of a spill or leak.

A 189 L (50-gallon) drum of oil was observed outside along the northwest corner of the Arena. According to the Site representative, the oil is used for compressors and GFL removes the drum annually.

## 6.7 EXTERIOR SITE OBSERVATIONS

#### 6.7.1 STRESSED OR STAINED VEGETATION

No stressed or stained vegetation was observed on-site at the time of the site visit with snow cover limiting observations.

#### 6.7.2 SURFACE STAINS

Oil residue was observed along the north side of the Arena. Snow cover obscured the extent of the remaining oil contamination but was seen to run along the wall for approximately four feet. Personal communication with the Client representative concluded that a large oil spill occurred in 2022 that resulted in approximately 454 L of motor oil to be spilled from oil drums that had been knocked over along the north side of the Arena. The number of drums included in the spill was unknown and the motor oil was stated to be from the compressors.

Oil mats and a large quantity of absorb-all were used by the City of Winnipeg staff to clean the surficial area and Miller Environmental collected the oil-impacted cleaning waste on October 12, 2022. Movement documents from Miller Environmental for the transportation of oil-impacted waste are provided in Appendix E-3. No excavation or intrusive remediation was conducted according to the Client Representative.

#### 6.7.3 FILL MATERIALS

Several small piles of fill material were observed at the northeast corner of the Site that appeared to contain gravel, sand with minor amounts of litter. The fill material may be remnants from melted snow stockpiles from previous snow clearing.

#### 6.7.4 WELLS

A water well database search was conducted through the MEC GWDrill (2018) database for the Site on March 16, 2023. The search as conducted using the Site's legal land Parish of St. James, by plotting all the well logs from the data file on Google Earth and acquiring the Well PID's of all well logs within 250 m of the Site. No well logs were registered within 250 m of the Site.

No groundwater wells were observed on-site during the Site visit.

#### 6.7.5 PITS AND LAGOONS

No pits and lagoons were observed on-site during the site visit.

#### 6.7.6 WATERCOURSES, DITCHES OR STANDING WATER

At the time of the Site visit, there was several small puddles of standing water observed around the Site due to melting snow. A significant amount of water was observed to be pooling along the west side of the Site where a drainage ditch was full of snow from the parking lot snow clearing.

In the southwest corner of the parking lot, standing water was observed in a low area that did not appear to be draining. The standing water made it difficult to confirm whether a drain is present or if it was clogged due to ice or debris.

#### 6.7.7 ROADS, PARKING FACILITIES AND RAILWAY RIGHTS-OF-WAY

The site is bound by the Assiniboine Golf Course along the north and west boundaries, Woodlawn Street along the east boundary and Ness Avenue along the south boundary. The southern half of the Site is a designated parking lot for the St. James Civic Centre.

There are no rail beds or rail rights-of-way on or adjacent to Site.

### 6.8 HAZARDOUS BUILDING MATERIALS

#### 6.8.1 ASBESTOS-CONTAINING MATERIALS (ACMs)

Asbestos is a commercial term given to six naturally occurring minerals that are incombustible and separable into fibers. The fibers are strong, durable, and resistant to heat and fire and are long, thin, and flexible, enabling them to be woven into cloth. These qualities have resulted in the wide use of asbestos in commercial, industrial, automotive, and building materials. Common ACMs include pipe-covering, insulating cement, insulating block, refractory and boiler insulation materials, transite board, fireproofing spray, plasters, joint compound, vinyl floor tile, vinyl sheet flooring, ceiling tile, mastics, roofing products, and duct insulation for HVAC applications. The application of friable (crumbles with hand pressure) ACMs was banned by legislation in the mid to late 1980s. Non-friable ACMs are still used in some products. ACMs are not regulated in all countries and as such can be present in imported materials. Inhalation of asbestos fibers can result in deleterious health effects.

The Site representative stated previous testing has been conducted within the Arena and older areas of the building that resulted in asbestos containing materials identified in the walls and flooring. It was expressed that the old staff kitchen (north of the auditorium) will be demolished for the new extension where it is expected to contain asbestos in the floor tiles. As zonolite insulation was confirmed to be present in the as-built construction of the Site building through personal communication with the Site representatives, it should be assumed to be asbestos-containing.

Due to the original year of construction (1965) of the Site building, both friable and non-friable ACM could be present as building materials on-site.

#### 6.8.2 POLYCHLORINATED BIPHENYLS (PCBs)

PCBs were widely used as coolants and lubricants for electrical equipment from the 1930s to the 1970s. Historically, PCBs were used in transformers and capacitors, and in such industrial materials as sealing and caulking compounds, inks and additives of paint. The only remaining uses of PCBs in Canada are in electrical transformers and capacitors existing in Canada before July 1, 1980, and in certain other "closed-use equipment" (specifically heat transfer equipment, hydraulic equipment and vapour diffusion pumps) that were in Canada before September 1, 1977. PCB containing equipment must now be taken out of service prior to regulatory deadlines.

The existing light fixtures in the Main portion on the building are all LED and were installed during the last phase of renovations and upgrades in 1996, PCB containing light ballasts are unlikely to be present on-site. A pad-mounted transformer is located along the west boundary of the property. A white circle sticker is present on the pad-mounted transformer, indicating that no PCB is present within.

As the basement Electrical Room and the Pool Mechanical Room was inaccessible during the Site visit, it was not reviewed for PCB-containing equipment.

#### 6.8.3 LEAD-BASED MATERIALS

Sources of lead in buildings include lead paint that was used during building construction prior to 1976 and leadbased water pipes and lead-solder joints on copper pipes that were primarily utilized in building construction between 1930 and 1986. Lead from paint, chips and dust can pose health hazards, especially in young children.

The Site representative stated previous testing hads been conducted within the building that identified the presence of lead paint used on all walls on-site. In the last phase of renovations and upgrades in 1996, the walls were all repainted to cover the exposed lead paint. Some areas on the Arena walls were observed to be chipping, exposing the potential lead-based paint.

#### 6.8.4 UREA FORMALDEHYDE FOAM INSULATION (UFFI)

Urea Formaldehyde Foam Insulation (UFFI) use was banned in Canada in 1980. Prior to the ban, UFFI was utilized as an insulation product in houses from the mid to late 1970s. It should be noted that commercial and industrial buildings do not commonly contain UFFI.

As the Site building was not constructed for residential purposes, UFFI is unlikely to be present on-site. It was also mentioned by the Site representatives that the Site building uses zonolite insulation.

#### 6.8.5 OZONE DEPLETING SUBSTANCES (ODSs)

Ozone-depleting substances (ODS) were commonly found in refrigeration and air conditioning equipment manufactured prior to 1998.

All refrigerators and air-conditioning equipment were assumed to have been upgraded and manufactured after 1998, therefore it is likely that there are no ODS present on-site. As the Arena uses liquid ammonia as a refrigerant, it is likely that no ODS are present in the Arena refrigeration system.

### 6.9 SPECIAL ATTENTION ITEMS

#### 6.9.1 MICROBIAL CONTAMINATION (MOULD) AND INDOOR AIR QUALITY

Moisture problems associated with building design, construction, heating and ventilation systems, aging building components, overland flooding and high humidity can lead to the growth of mould in indoor environments. Water staining and water damage are often indicators of the potential for mould growth that can lead to adverse health issues. Only readily accessible areas were assessed for water damage and mould during this investigation.

The Site representative reported that the crawlspace beneath the Arena is constantly moist with high humidity throughout the year with standing water also present. It is unknown where the water is coming from.

A stagnant water odour was observed in the Boiler Room, containing 10 water tanks in the basement. The Site representative reported this was not a normal occurrence and was unsure where the odour was being generated.

#### 6.9.2 ELECTROMAGNETIC FIELDS (EMFS)

Power transmission lines and electrical substations are common sources of EMFs. Currently, human health risks associated with exposure to EMFs are being investigated by Health Canada. Currently, Canada does not have any national, territorial, or provincial standards or guidelines related to EMFs.

Hydro-towers running high voltage transmission lines run north to south along the east border of the Site. Due to the height of the towers, EMFs are not likely a concern at ground level.

#### 6.9.3 NOISE AND VIBRATION

Human health effects from noise and vibration are varied and are based on the characteristics of the noise/vibration, length of exposure and the susceptibility of the exposed individual.

Significant noise or vibrations were not detected during the site visit. Vehicle traffic may be a source of noise and vibration, but it is not expected to be at a level that pose an environmental concern.

#### 6.9.4 INTERIOR SURFACE STAINS

Several radial water stains were observed on ceiling tiles, assumed to be from water damage and may be a source of mould impacts. Mould-impacted building materials could not be confirmed as no samples were taken.

### 6.10 ADJOINING PROPERTY INFORMATION

A summary of the current and historic activities conducted on neighboring properties is presented below (**Table 5**). Information regarding adjoining properties was collected from observations completed during the site visit and from a historical records review.

Property 1	Description		
Address:	Golf Course		
Direction From Site:	North		
Relation to Property:	Adjacent		
Occupant Name and Current Activities:	Assiniboine Golf Course		
Historical Activities:	Previously undeveloped, vacant land.		
Potential Environmental Concerns:	Based on the current condition of the buildings and surrounding areas, this property is unlikely to pose an environmental concern to the Site.		
Property 2	Description		
Address:	Multiple residential houses		
Direction From Site:	South		
Relation to Property:	Adjacent		
Occupant Name and Current Activities:	Multiple single-family residential community		
Historical Activities:	Previously undeveloped, vacant land.		
Potential Environmental Concerns:	Based on the current condition of the buildings and surrounding areas, this property is unlikely to pose an environmental concern to the Site.		
Property 3	Description		
Address:	425 Woodlawn Street		
Direction From Site:	East		
Relation to Property:	Adjacent		
Occupant Name and Current Activities:	Deer Lodge Curling Club		
Historical Activities:	Previously undeveloped, vacant land.		

#### Table 5. Current and Historic Activities Conducted on Neighbouring Properties

Potential Environmental Concerns:	Based on the current condition of the buildings and surrounding areas, this property is unlikely to pose an environmental concern to the Site.		
Property 4	Description		
Address:	Golf Course		
Direction From Site:	West		
Relation to Property:	Adjacent		
Occupant Name and Current Activities:	Assiniboine Golf Course		
Historical Activities:	Previously undeveloped, vacant land.		
Potential Environmental Concerns:	Based on the current condition of the buildings and surrounding areas, this property is unlikely to pose an environmental concern to the Site.		

# 7 SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

Based on the results of the Phase I ESA, a highlight of findings for the Site is as follows:

- Land parcels within the Site are registered to the client (the City of Winnipeg) and to the Rural Municipality of St. James. There are no caveats or liens in the land titles that appear to indicate an environmental concern to the Site.
- Historic aerial photographs indicate the Site was primarily vacant land prior to 1968 before being developed with a large on-site building similar to the present-day St. James Civic Centre. No ASTs nor stockpiles were observed to be present on-site and adjacent properties for each of the historical aerial photographs reviewed.
- Results from the ERIS Ecolog search referenced the Site and the north adjacent Assiniboine Golf Club as registered Waste Generators. None of the off-site listings are anticipated to pose an environmental concern to the Site. The Site likely generates used lubricating oil for the compressors servicing the Arena and functions as a transfer depot for recyclable wastes. On-site waste generation is not anticipated to be a significant environmental concern with proper housekeeping and storage.
- An MEC File Search response received on March 31 (File Search No. 6582) indicate that the Site is not listed as having any outstanding environmental orders, nor is it registered as having a file under the MEC Contaminated or Impacted Sites Program. The Site is not listed as a registered petroleum storage site.
- Based on personal communication with Mr. Larry Santucci, the Arena Foreman, during the interview with Client representatives on-site, an oil spill of approximately 454 litres had previously occurred at the northwest corner of the Site building with surficial clean-up with absorb-all completed by City of Winnipeg staff and oilimpacted debris removed by Miller Environmental on October 12, 2022. As the there may be residual petroleum hydrocarbons impacts in the subsurface from seepage between the oil spill and the clean-up attempt, the northwest corner of the Site building exterior is identified as an Area of Potential Environmental Concern (APEC).
- Based on the age of the Site building construction (1965), asbestos-containing materials, lead paint, mercurycontaining equipment, and PCB-containing equipment may be present on-site.

# 8 RECOMMENDATIONS

Based on the findings of the Phase I ESA, WSP recommends the following:

- Continued good housekeeping of lubricating oil, cleaning and chemical supplies on-site; ensure that the liquid ammonia storage area is inaccessible to the public and is well ventilated at all times.
- Prior to any renovation or demolition work, it is recommended to conduct a Hazardous Materials Assessment as the original building structure was constructed in 1965, and there may be additional unconfirmed locations with asbestos-containing materials, lead paint, ozone-depleting refrigerants, mercury-containing equipment, and PCB-containing equipment present on-site.
- Due to excessive moisture reported under the crawlspace of the arena, an odour of stagnant water present in the boiler room, water-stained ceiling tiles and the age of the building, it is recommended that an Indoor Air Quality and Fungal Assessment be conducted should there be reports from building occupants regarding respiratory irritations or musty odours indoors.
- A Limited Phase II ESA is recommended based on the identified APEC located at the northwest Site building corner associated with an oil spill in 2022. As a large quantity of absorb-all was used in the contaminant source removal at ground surface, the main objective of the Limited Phase II ESA would be to determine the presence or absence of residual impacts in the subsurface associated with the oil spill. Based on the results of the limited Phase II ESA, several outcomes are possible:
  - Ideal Scenario: If soil contaminant parameters are below applicable guidelines for all soil samples, it is likely that impacts were limited to near surface, mostly removed by absorbent pads, and residual concentrations do not pose a threat to human and ecological health. No further environmental work may be necessary.
  - Realistic Scenario: If soil contaminant parameters exceed guidelines for certain soil samples but are limited to a confirmed depth and lateral extent, i.e. soil samples have no exceedances below a certain depth or past a certain lateral distance from spill, then the soil impact plume can be considered delineated and an estimated volume of soil requiring remediation can be provided to the Province for approval to conduct remedial activities.
  - Undesirable Scenario: If soil contaminant parameters exceed guidelines for certain soil samples, but cannot be delineated with a defined soil impact plume boundary during the limited Phase II ESA (i.e. the deepest soil samples from the Limited Phase II ESA exceeds guidelines, and deeper soil samples could not be obtained for vertical delineation that they do not exceed guidelines), then a Phase II ESA involving a drill rig and the installation of monitoring wells for the assessment of groundwater impacts may be required to determine the estimated volume of soil and groundwater impacts at depth.

# **9 STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS**

This report has been prepared for use by the City of Winnipeg in accordance with generally accepted environmental investigation practices at the time of the assessment within the scope suggested by Canadian Standard Association's Phase I Environmental Site Assessment document (CSA Z768-94). The Standard Limitations pertaining to the use of this report are presented in **Appendix F**.

# **10 QUALIFICATION OF ASSESSORS**

**Mr. Darren Keam, M.Sc., P.Ag.**, is the Team Lead, Senior Soil Scientist and Regional Manager with the Occupational Health and Safety business unit at WSP. He has more than 22 years of experience in agriculture and environmental management and more than 20 years conducting and managing Phase I and II ESA projects. Mr. Keam leads EM opportunities, including Phase I and II ESA planning, site assessments and investigations and data analysis as well as providing senior technical review and quality assurance and quality control review of ESA data and reports. Mr. Keam is a member in good standing with the Manitoba Institute of Agrologists.

Alfred Chan, B.Sc. Geol., P.Geo., PMP is a Project Scientist in our EM Business Unit in Winnipeg, Manitoba. Alfred is a licensed Professional Geoscientist (P.Geo.) with the Association of Professional Engineers and Geoscientists of the Province of Manitoba (EGM). Alfred has over 10 years of experience consisting of Phase I and II environmental site assessments, site inspections, remedial groundwater monitoring, soil remediation, petroleum storage tank removal inspections, mineral exploration, geotechnical investigations and community road upgrades. In addition to field investigations, Alfred is involved with the coordination of projects and budgets, data analysis, technical reporting and utilizes software such as Bentley gINT Professional, MapINFO, ArcGIS and AutoCAD to produce deliverables for clients.

**Cassie Bujan, B.Env.Sc.** is a Project Scientist with the WSP Earth & Environment in Winnipeg, MB. She has a Bachelor of Environmental Science with a major in conservation and biodiversity. Cassie has a year of experience working in the Manitoba agriculture and environmental industries including laboratory research and analysis. Cassie has worked for numerous clients and projects including commercial and residential projects. Her responsibilities with WSP include conducting Phase I and Phase II ESAs, site inspections, biosolid management and groundwater monitoring. In addition to field investigation, Cassie is involved in the coordination of projects, data analysis and technical report writing.






Phase | Environmenta | Site Assessment



# ATTACHMENT

# B PHOTOGRAPHS



Photograph 1 – Exterior, north site boundary

Looking north at the north adjacent property, Assiniboine Golf Course, from the north elevation.



Photograph 2 – Exterior, northwest corner of site boundary

Looking west towards the west adjacent property, Assiniboine Golf Course, from the northwest corner elevation.



April 11, 2023

Photograph 3 – Exterior, southwest corner of site boundary

Looking west towards the west adjacent property, Assiniboine Golf Course, from the southwest corner elevation.



Photograph 4 – Exterior, south site boundary Looking south towards residential housing along Ness Avenue, from the south elevation.



Photograph 5 – Exterior, southeast corner of site boundary Looking east at adjacent property from the southeast elevation.



Photograph 6 – Exterior, northeast corner of site boundary Looking east at the adjacent property, Deer Lodge Curling Club, from the northeast elevation.



Photograph 7 – Exterior, north site boundary Looking southeast from the north elevation.



Photograph 8 – Exterior, west site boundary Looking east from the northwest elevation.

112



Photograph 9 – Exterior, west site boundary Looking east from the southwest elevation towards the Site parking lot.



Photograph 10 – Exterior, south site boundary Looking north from the south elevation.



Photograph 11 – Exterior, east site boundary Looking southwest from the northeast elevation.



Photograph 12 – Interior, main lobby Looking south from the Arena towards the building main entrance.

112



Photograph 13 – Interior, Arena entrance Looking north at the Arena main entrance from the lobby.



Photograph 14 – Interior, Arena Looking northwest at the Arena rink from the southeast corner.

April 11, 2023



Photograph 15 – Interior, Arena Looking south at the Arena rink from the north side.



Photograph 16 – Interior, Arena changeroom Looking inward at the changeroom located under the Arena bleachers.

April 11, 2023

112





Photograph 17 – Interior, Zamboni room Looking inward at the Zamboni room from the doorway located in the northwest corner of the Arena.



Photograph 18 – Interior, west corridor Looking west down the west corridor just off the lobby.

April 11, 2023





Photograph 19 – Interior, pool chemical room Looking inward at the pool chemical room containing no hazardous materials.



Photograph 20 – Interior, east corridor Looking east down the east corridor just off the lobby.



Photograph 21 – Interior, staff kitchen Looking inward at the staff kitchen (to be removed), north off the east corridor.



Photograph 22 – Interior, basement Looking east down the basement corridor that is underneath the center portion of the building.



Photograph 23 – Interior, basement storage room Looking inward at a large storage room located on the west side of the basement.



Photograph 24 – Interior, basement boiler room Looking inward at ten new water tanks located in the basement boiler room.





Photograph 25 – Interior, basement pool storage area Looking inward at the east portion of the storage area located in the basement under the pool.



Photograph 26 – Interior, basement pool storage area Looking inward at the west portion of the storage area located in the basement under the pool.





Photograph 27 – Interior, mechanical and electrical room Looking inward at the newly renovated mechanical and electrical room.



Photograph 28 – Interior, mechanical and electrical room Looking inward at the back area of the newly renovated mechanical and electrical room.





Photograph 29 – Interior, auditorium side kitchen Looking inward at the small, side kitchen located just north of the auditorium.



Photograph 30 – Exterior, small out-building Looking north from the east elevation, just north of the auditorium, towards a small, unused out-building.



Photograph 31 – Exterior, out-building interior

Looking inward at the interior of the small, unused out-building located along the east side of the main building.



Photograph 32 – Interior, Arena crawlspace Looking inward at the crawlspace located under the Arena, currently being worked on.





Photograph 33 – Interior, pool crawlspace Looking inward at a section of the crawlspace located under the pool.



Photograph 34 – Interior, Arena flooring Looking at the flooring in the Arena that may contain asbestos.

April 11, 2023



Photograph 35 - Interior, Arena north wall

Looking at paint peeling on the north wall of the Arena that is revealing potentially lead-containing paint.



Photograph 36 – Interior, construction area in Arena

Looking at the northeast corner of the Arena where construction is occurring for the underlying crawlspace, with enclosure set up to prevent silica dust contamination.





Photograph 37 – Interior, ammonia tanks Looking at ammonia tanks stored to the north of the Arena.



Photograph 38 – Exterior, oil contamination Looking along the northwest corner of the building at oil contamination that has not been cleaned up.

# wsp



Photograph 39 – Exterior, oil barrels Looking along the northwest corner of the building having two oil storage barrels.



Photograph 40 – Exterior, air handling unit Looking at the west side of the Arena at the air handling unit connected to the Zamboni room.



Photograph 41 – Interior, ceiling stain

Looking at water damage stains on the ceiling of the staff kitchen that is to be removed.



Photograph 42 – Interior, drain Looking at a drain located in the basement storage room.



Photograph 43 – Interior, stairs leading to the second floor

Looking at potentially asbestos containing materials on the stairs leading to the second floor.



Photograph 44 – Interior, boiler room Looking at unknown stains located in the boiler room floor.





Photograph 45 – Exterior, fill piles Looking at unknown fill piles located at the northeast corner of the building.



Photograph 46 - Exterior, transformer

Looking at the transformer located to the east of the building with the Deer Lodge Curling Club in the background.



Photograph 47 - Exterior, stormwater catch basin

Looking southwest from the west elevation towards an apparent stormwater catch basin with ponded water.



Photograph 48 - Exterior, recycling depot

Looking southwest from the parking lot at the area designated as a community recycling depot for the City of Winnipeg.





### **STATUS OF TITLE**

Title Number 2392235/1 Title Status Accepted Client File 231-0xxxx-00



#### 1. **REGISTERED OWNERS, TENANCY AND LAND DESCRIPTION**

THE CITY OF WINNIPEG

IS REGISTERED OWNER SUBJECT TO SUCH ENTRIES RECORDED HEREON IN THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED LAND:

LOT 4 BLOCK 14 PLAN 1617 WLTO IN RL 22 TO 25 PARISH OF ST JAMES

The land in this title is, unless the contrary is expressly declared, deemed to be subject to the reservations and restrictions set out in section 58 of The Real Property Act.

#### 2. **ACTIVE INSTRUMENTS**

No active instruments

#### 3. ADDRESSES FOR SERVICE

CITY OF WINNIPEG (LAW) **3RD FLOOR** 185 KING ST. WINNIPEG MB R3B 1J1

#### 4. **TITLE NOTES**

No title notes

#### 5. LAND TITLES DISTRICT

Winnipeg

#### 6. **DUPLICATE TITLE INFORMATION**

Duplicate not produced

#### 7. **FROM TITLE NUMBERS**

B7995/1

#### **REAL PROPERTY APPLICATION / CROWN GRANT NUMBERS** 8.

No real property application or grant information

All

### 9. ORIGINATING INSTRUMENTS

Instrument Type:	Request To Issue Title - Internal
Registration Number:	3968025/1
Registration Date: From/By: To: Amount:	2010-08-18 WLTO INTERNAL

### 10. LAND INDEX

Lot 4 Block 14 Plan 1617 RL 22 TO 25 JA

### CERTIFIED TRUE EXTRACT PRODUCED FROM THE LAND TITLES DATA STORAGE SYSTEM OF TITLE NUMBER 2392235/1

### **STATUS OF TITLE**

2421830/1 Title Number Accepted Title Status Client File 231-0xxxx-00



#### 1. **REGISTERED OWNERS, TENANCY AND LAND DESCRIPTION**

THE CITY OF WINNIPEG

IS REGISTERED OWNER SUBJECT TO SUCH ENTRIES RECORDED HEREON IN THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED LAND:

LOT 4 BLOCK 13 PLAN 1617 WLTO IN RL 22 TO 25 PARISH OF ST. JAMES

The land in this title is, unless the contrary is expressly declared, deemed to be subject to the reservations and restrictions set out in section 58 of The Real Property Act.

#### 2. ACTIVE INSTRUMENTS

3.

4.

5.

Instrument Type: Registration Number: Instrument Status:	Bylaw G47980/1 Accepted
Registration Date: From/By: To:	1965-05-17 CITY OF WINNIPEG
Amount: Notes: Description:	AFF:CLOSES LANE BY-LAW NO. 10200 CLOSES PT GUILDFORD ST & PUBLIC LANE
ADDRESSES FOR SERVICE	
CITY OF WINNIPEG (LAW) 3RD FLOOR 185 KING ST. WINNIPEG MB R3B 1J1	
TITLE NOTES	
No title notes	
LAND TITLES DISTRICT Winnipeg	

6.	DUPLICATE TITLE INFORMATION		
	Duplicate not produced		
7.	FROM TITLE NUMBERS		
	A25786/1 All		
8.	REAL PROPERTY APPLICATION / CROWN GRANT NUMBERS		
	No real property application or grant information		
9.	ORIGINATING INSTRUMENTS		
	Instrument Type:	Request To Issue Title - Internal	
	Registration Number:	3989018/1	
	Registration Date:	2010-10-04	
	From/By:	CONVERSIONS	
	То:		
	Amount:		
10.	LAND INDEX		
	Lot 4 Block 13 Plan 1617		
	RL 22 TO 25 JA		

### CERTIFIED TRUE EXTRACT PRODUCED FROM THE LAND TITLES DATA STORAGE SYSTEM OF TITLE NUMBER 2421830/1
Title Number 2302345/1 Title Status Accepted Client File 231-0xxxx-00



## 1. **REGISTERED OWNERS, TENANCY AND LAND DESCRIPTION CITY OF WINNIPEG** IS REGISTERED OWNER SUBJECT TO SUCH ENTRIES RECORDED HEREON IN THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED LAND: LOTS 1 TO 7 INCLUSIVE AND LOTS 16 TO 27 INCLUSIVE BLOCK 23 PLAN 1693 WLTO EXC OUT OF LOT 1 NESS AVE PLAN 6490 WLTO IN RL 20 AND 21 PARISH OF ST JAMES The land in this title is, unless the contrary is expressly declared, deemed to be subject to the reservations and restrictions set out in section 58 of The Real Property Act. 2. **ACTIVE INSTRUMENTS** Instrument Type: **Bylaw** G47980/1 Registration Number: Instrument Status: Accepted Registration Date: 1965-05-17

From/By: **CITY OF WINNIPEG** 

To:

Amount:	
Notes:	AFFECTS LOTS 1 TO 7
Description:	BY-LAW NO. 10200 CLOSES PT GUILDFORD ST & PUBLIC LANE

### 3. ADDRESSES FOR SERVICE

CITY OF WINNIPEG LAW DEPT. **510 MAIN STREET** WINNIPEG MB LEGAL SERV: FILE R.8/2004(25) R3B 1B9

### **TITLE NOTES** 4.

No title notes

5.	LAND TITLES DISTRICT	
	Winnipeg	
6.	DUPLICATE TITLE INFORM	ATION
	Duplicate not produced	
7.	FROM TITLE NUMBERS	
	862297/1 Part	
8.	REAL PROPERTY APPLICAT	TION / CROWN GRANT NUMBERS
	No real property application	on or grant information
9.	ORIGINATING INSTRUME	NTS
	Instrument Type: Registration Number:	Request Electronic Title Conversion 3619746/1
	Registration Date: From/By: To: Amount:	2008-05-28 WLTO CONVERSIONS
10.	LAND INDEX	
	Lot 1 Block 23 Plan 1693 EXC PLAN 6490 SLY 25' OF	B LOT 1 FOR NESS AVE
	Lot 2 Block 23 Plan 1693	}
	Lot 3 Block 23 Plan 1693	3
	Lot 4 Block 23 Plan 1693	3
	Lot 5 Block 23 Plan 1693	3
	Lot 6 Block 23 Plan 1693	8
	Lot 7 Block 23 Plan 1693	3
	Lot 16 Block 23 Plan 169	93
	Lot 17 Block 23 Plan 169	93
	Lot 18 Block 23 Plan 169	93
	Lot 19 Block 23 Plan 169	93

Lot 20	Block 23	Plan 1693
Lot 21	Block 23	Plan 1693
Lot 22	Block 23	Plan 1693
Lot 23	Block 23	Plan 1693
Lot 24	Block 23	Plan 1693
Lot 25	Block 23	Plan 1693
Lot 26	Block 23	Plan 1693
Lot 27	Block 23	Plan 1693

# CERTIFIED TRUE EXTRACT PRODUCED FROM THE LAND TITLES DATA STORAGE SYSTEM OF TITLE NUMBER 2302345/1

Title Number2423973/1Title StatusAcceptedClient File231-0xxxx-00



# 1. REGISTERED OWNERS, TENANCY AND LAND DESCRIPTION

THE CITY OF WINNIPEG

IS REGISTERED OWNER SUBJECT TO SUCH ENTRIES RECORDED HEREON IN THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED LAND:

LOTS 5 AND 6 BLOCK 14 PLAN 1617 WLTO IN RL 22 TO 25 PARISH OF ST JAMES

The land in this title is, unless the contrary is expressly declared, deemed to be subject to the reservations and restrictions set out in section 58 of *The Real Property Act*.

### 2. ACTIVE INSTRUMENTS

No active instruments

### 3. ADDRESSES FOR SERVICE

CITY OF WINNIPEG (LAW) 3RD FLOOR 185 KING ST. WINNIPEG MB R3B 1J1

## 4. TITLE NOTES

No title notes

## 5. LAND TITLES DISTRICT

Winnipeg

## 6. DUPLICATE TITLE INFORMATION

Duplicate not produced

### 7. FROM TITLE NUMBERS

A20949/1

## 8. REAL PROPERTY APPLICATION / CROWN GRANT NUMBERS

No real property application or grant information

All

## 9. ORIGINATING INSTRUMENTS

Instrument Type:	Request To Issue Title - Internal
Registration Number:	3997456/1
Registration Date: From/By: To: Amount:	2010-10-22 WLTO INTERNAL - CONVERSIONS

## 10. LAND INDEX

Lot 5 Block 14 Plan 1617 RL 22 TO 25 JA

Lot 6 Block 14 Plan 1617 RL 22 TO 25 JA

# CERTIFIED TRUE EXTRACT PRODUCED FROM THE LAND TITLES DATA STORAGE SYSTEM OF TITLE NUMBER 2423973/1



2459204/1 Title Number Accepted Title Status Client File 231-0xxxx-00

#### 1. **REGISTERED OWNERS, TENANCY AND LAND DESCRIPTION**

### THE CITY OF WINNIPEG

IS REGISTERED OWNER SUBJECT TO SUCH ENTRIES RECORDED HEREON IN THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED LAND:

LOTS 1, 2 AND 3 BLOCK 13 PLAN 1617 WLTO EXCEPT OUT OF SAID LOT 1 THE SLY 25 FEET IN RL 22 TO 25 PARISH OF ST JAMES

The land in this title is, unless the contrary is expressly declared, deemed to be subject to the reservations and restrictions set out in section 58 of The Real Property Act.

### 2. ACTIVE INSTRUMENTS

	Instrument Type: Registration Number: Instrument Status:	Bylaw G47980/1 Accepted
	Registration Date: From/By: To:	1965-05-17 CITY OF WINNIPEG
	Amount: Notes: Description:	No notes BY-LAW NO. 10200 CLOSES PT GUILDFORD ST & PUBLIC LANE
3.	ADDRESSES FOR SERVICE CITY OF WINNIPEG (LAW) 3RD FLOOR 185 KING ST. WINNIPEG MB R3B 1J1	
4.	<b>TITLE NOTES</b> No title notes	
5.	LAND TITLES DISTRICT Winnipeg	

6.	DUPLICATE TITLE INFORM	IATION
	Duplicate not produced	
7.	FROM TITLE NUMBERS	
	898363/1 All	
8.	REAL PROPERTY APPLICAT	TION / CROWN GRANT NUMBERS
	No real property application	on or grant information
9.	ORIGINATING INSTRUME	NTS
	Instrument Type:	Request To Issue Title - Internal
	Registration Number:	4025592/1
	Registration Date:	2011-01-06
	From/By:	WLTO INTERNAL - CONVERSIONS
	То:	
	Amount:	
10.	LAND INDEX	
	Lot 1 Block 13 Plan 1617	7
	RL 22 TO 25 JA; EX SLY 25	FEET
	Lot 2 Block 13 Plan 1617	7
	RL 22 TO 25 JA	
	Lot 3 Block 13 Plan 1617	7
	RL 22 TO 25 JA	

# CERTIFIED TRUE EXTRACT PRODUCED FROM THE LAND TITLES DATA STORAGE SYSTEM OF TITLE NUMBER 2459204/1

Title Number2475173/1Title StatusAcceptedClient File231-0xxxx-00



# 1. **REGISTERED OWNERS, TENANCY AND LAND DESCRIPTION** THE DEER LODGE CURLING CLUB LIMITED IS REGISTERED OWNER SUBJECT TO SUCH ENTRIES RECORDED HEREON IN THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED LAND: PARCEL 1: LOTS 7 TO 11 AND LOTS 34 TO 38 BLOCK 14 PLAN 1617 WLTO EXC OUT OF SAID LOT 34 THE SLY 20 FEET IN RL 22 TO 25 PARISH OF ST JAMES PARCEL 2: ALL THAT PORTION OF RL 22 PARISH OF ST JAMES SHOWN COLOURED GREEN AND MARKED PARCEL "A" PLAN 6522 WLTO The land in this title is, unless the contrary is expressly declared, deemed to be subject to the reservations and restrictions set out in section 58 of The Real Property Act. 2. **ACTIVE INSTRUMENTS** Instrument Type: Bylaw C72882/1 Registration Number: Instrument Status: Accepted

7655 CLOSES LANE WTN LAND PL 6522

1957-06-04

No notes

**CITY OF ST. JAMES** 

Registration Date:

From/By:

Amount: Notes:

Description:

To:

Instrument Type: Registration Number: Instrument Status:	Caveat 1108308/1 Accepted
Registration Date:	1988-12-29
То:	AGENT: VED PARKASH BAHL
Amount:	
Notes:	AFF: S20'LOT 7
Description:	No description
Instrument Type:	Mortgage
<b>Registration Number:</b>	4718677/1
Instrument Status:	Accepted
Registration Date:	2016-05-05
From/By:	THE DEER LODGE CURLING CLUB LIMITED
То:	ROYAL BANK OF CANADA
Amount:	\$50,000.00
Notes:	No notes
Description:	No description
Instrument Type:	Caveat
<b>Registration Number:</b>	4849930/1
Instrument Status:	Accepted
Registration Date:	2017-06-06
From/By:	TM MOBILE INC.
То:	
Amount:	
Notes:	No notes
Description:	LEASE EXPIRES 2037-01-31

	Instrument Type: Registration Number: Instrument Status:	Caveat 5283755/1 Accepted
	Registration Date: From/By: To:	2021-04-15 ROGERS COMMUNICATIONS INC. LANDSOLUTIONS GP INC. as agent
	Amount: Notes: Description:	No notes Lease, No Expiry
3.	ADDRESSES FOR SERVICE	
	THE DEER LODGE CURLING X	G CLUB
4.	TITLE NOTES	
	No title notes	
5.	LAND TITLES DISTRICT	
	Winnipeg	
6.	DUPLICATE TITLE INFORM	IATION
	Duplicate not produced	
7.	FROM TITLE NUMBERS	
	870067/1 All	
8.	REAL PROPERTY APPLICAT	TION / CROWN GRANT NUMBERS
	No real property application	on or grant information
9.	ORIGINATING INSTRUME	NTS
	Instrument Type: Registration Number:	Request To Issue Title - Internal 4026025/1
	Registration Date: From/By: To: Amount:	2011-01-07 WLTO INTERNAL - CONVERSIONS
10.	LAND INDEX	
	RL 22 JA PT; SHOWN AS PCL "A" PI	LN 6522

Lot 7 Block 14 Plan 1617 RL 22 TO 25 JA Lot 8 Block 14 Plan 1617 RL 22 TO 25 JA Lot 9 Block 14 Plan 1617 RL 22 TO 25 JA Lot 10 Block 14 Plan 1617 RL 22 TO 25 JA Lot 11 Block 14 Plan 1617 RL 22 TO 25 JA Lot 34 Block 14 Plan 1617 RL 22 TO 25 JA; EX SLY 20' Lot 35 Block 14 Plan 1617 RL 22 TO 25 JA Lot 36 Block 14 Plan 1617 RL 22 TO 25 JA Lot 37 Block 14 Plan 1617 RL 22 TO 25 JA Lot 38 Block 14 Plan 1617 RL 22 TO 25 JA

# CERTIFIED TRUE EXTRACT PRODUCED FROM THE LAND TITLES DATA STORAGE SYSTEM OF TITLE NUMBER 2475173/1

2549013/1 Title Number Accepted Title Status Client File 231-0xxxx-00



#### 1. **REGISTERED OWNERS, TENANCY AND LAND DESCRIPTION**

THE CITY OF WINNIPEG

IS REGISTERED OWNER SUBJECT TO SUCH ENTRIES RECORDED HEREON IN THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED LAND:

LOTS 13, 14 AND 17 TO 21 BLOCK 13 AND LOT 2 BLOCK 19 PLAN 1617 WLTO IN RL 22 TO 25 PARISH OF ST JAMES

The land in this title is, unless the contrary is expressly declared, deemed to be subject to the reservations and restrictions set out in section 58 of The Real Property Act.

### 2. ACTIVE INSTRUMENTS

	Instrument Type: Registration Number: Instrument Status:	Bylaw G47980/1 Accepted
	Registration Date: From/By:	1965-05-17 CITY OF WINNIPEG
	To: Amount:	
	Notes: Description:	AFF LOTS 13 & 14 BY-LAW NO. 10200 CLOSES PT GUILDFORD ST & PUBLIC LANE
3.	ADDRESSES FOR SERVICE	
	CITY OF WINNIPEG (LAW)	
	3RD FLOOR 185 KING ST	
	WINNIPEG MB	
	R3B 1J1	
4.	TITLE NOTES	
	No title notes	
5.	LAND TITLES DISTRICT	
	Winnipeg	

6.	DUPLICATE TITLE INFORM	ATION
	Duplicate not produced	
7.	FROM TITLE NUMBERS	
	562332/1 All	
8.	REAL PROPERTY APPLICAT	ION / CROWN GRANT NUMBERS
	No real property applicatio	on or grant information
9.	ORIGINATING INSTRUMEN	ITS
	Instrument Type: Registration Number:	Request To Issue Title - Internal 4062121/1
	Registration Date:	2011-04-20
	From/By:	WLTO INTERNAL - CONVERSIONS
	Amount:	
10.	LAND INDEX	
	Lot 13 Block 13 Plan 161 RL 22 TO 25 JA	7
	Lot 14 Block 13 Plan 161 RL 22 TO 25 JA	7
	Lot 17 Block 13 Plan 161 RL 22 TO 25 JA	7
	Lot 18 Block 13 Plan 161 RL 22 TO 25 JA	7
	Lot 19 Block 13 Plan 161 RL 22 TO 25 JA	7
	Lot 20 Block 13 Plan 161 RL 22 TO 25 JA	7
	Lot 21 Block 13 Plan 161 RL 22 TO 25 JA	7
	Lot 2 Block 19 Plan 1617 RL 22 TO 25 JA	

CERTIFIED TRUE EXTRACT PRODUCED FROM THE LAND TITLES DATA STORAGE SYSTEM OF TITLE NUMBER 2549013/1



of Saint-James in Manitöba, Begistered in the Winnibeg Land Titles (Sfice,as No.1693

IN WITNESS WHEREOF Thuse hereante segned my name and affixed my Scal of office this One thousand wine hundred and day of Sixteenth July twenty-three Figured in the presence of N. P. Mellow Separty Sistrict Roge for Hinnipey CENTRAL ALLAND



Cent No. 359435 entitled to this 15(5) THE RURAL MUNICIPALITY OF SAINT-JAMES. 18 now seized of an estate in fee simple in possession subject to such encumbrances liens and interests as are notified by memoran dum underwritten (or endorsed hereon ) in all the se piece or parcel of land known and described as follows Lots Seven, Eight Nine and I en, Lots Twelve to Twenty-four both inclusive Lots Twenty-seven to Thirty-two both inclusive Lots Thirty-five to Thirty eight both inclusive and Lots Forty to Fifty-four both inclusive in Block twenty-two which lots are shown on a plan of survey of part of Lots Twenty and Twenty-one of the Parish of Saint-James in Manitoba, registered in the Winnipeg Land Titles Office, as No. 1693.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF Thave percunto signed my name and ixed my Seal of office this Seventh November ne hundred and twenty-three kræsen*ce of* COLLECT \$.**3/** 1777 uster 11 Ceo. V Cap. 81 Sec.

From No. 172440 Transcritter NO 21794. Application NATURE OF INSTRUMENT DAY AND HOUR OF ITS PRODUCTION NAMES OF THE PARTIES TO IT **REGISTRATION NUMI** Į. <u>T</u>A# aay q Pien on Sasfe 6490 pril 183 Ŵ aţ 10.14 أأد ماله Hayward at 28 Bet 22 for a. 6490 the ROOM s ale. Deputy District Registrer no. Th day ame The 17 10,200 194 at 9. 0 7980 **1**4.0 4 40 to 42 35 10 38 Deputy District Registrar **7**80 day d 192 at reloek in the Deputy District Regists The day q<sup>e</sup> 192 at. oolock in the Deputy District Registrar 1740 day q<sup>e</sup> 192 at. selook in the noo Deputy District Registrar The day q ..... at lke **MHER** S, onty District Registras The day of 182 ck ú æl zá.

Cere No. 398399 icate of E REAL MUNICIPALITY OF ST. RURAL JAMES . 10 now seized of an estate in fee simple in possession subject to such encumbrances liens and interests as are notified by memorandum underwritten (or endersed hereon ) in all the spiece or parcel of land known and described as follows Lot Five in ELOCK THIRTEEN which lot is shown on a plan of survey of part of lots Twenty Two to Twenty Five of the Parish of Saint James, in Manitoba, registered in the Winnipeg Land Titles Office as No. 1617 .

IN WITNESS WHEREOF Thave hereunto signed my name and day of JANUARY afficed my Seal of office this FOURTH me thousand nine hundred and SEVEN . igned in the presence of r ustrar <sup>n</sup> Minnipeg, 12

· .

. .

Home No 3118	Trange aman NU	30101	pplication
NATURE OF INSTRUMENT	DAY AND HOUR OF THE PRODUCTION	NAMES OF THE PARTIES TO IT	REGISTRATION NUMBER
Bur-lear no. 10, 200 .	The 17 day of	hit, of the games	7
close line	may 18/45	source of the second se	
Alerto within	at 9. Ung - octoor in the Int o mean	J. 47980	
appens not			
land			
		Denuty Destruct Resistner	
	·		
	The day of		
	19 ut delock in		
	the noon		
		· · ·	
		Deputy District Registrar	~
			<b>├</b> ─── <b>│</b>
	The day of 10		
	et oclock in		
	the noon		
•			
		Deputy District Registrar	
	The down	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	19		
	at delock in		
	the neen		
		- · · ·	
·		man a mining the ristory	
		Lopusy Literat Ingroom	<u> </u>
	The day of	,	
· .	19 at cicch in		
	the noon		
	· ·		·
	j	Deputy District Registrar	.
	 		+
	2.75 <b>469 of</b> 19		1
	at delock in		
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	the noon		· •
Ń			
A. C.	•		· •
Ý		Deputy District Registrar	
<u>v</u>	The day of		
R	19		
	at delock in		·
8			
		Banne Michael Barian	
•		LEPRING LIBERCE REGISTER	1 0 1

Cert. No. 401746 cate of Et BEAL PROPERTY ACT." THE RURAL MUNICIPALITY OF ST. JAMES. 18 now seized of an estate in fee simple in possession subject to such encumbrances liens and interests as are notified by memorandum underwritten (or endersed hereon ) in all these piecesor parcels of land known and described as follows Lots Bight, Eleven, Ive Ive, Iventyfive and Twenty-six in Block Thirteen; which lots are shown on a plan of survey of part of Lets Twentytwo to Twenty-five of the Parish of Saint James, registered in the Winnipeg Land Titles Office as Ne. 1617. Thave hereunte signed m Ninth day of IN WITNESS WHEREOF t/my/name\_and afficed my Seal of office this Ninth One thousand nine hundred and April Twenty Seven. gned in the presence of FEES COLLECT S. endig 12 Cost Villag - 81 Bec 31.

I'm From No.	241 344 233112- 195973	Transfil coacin -	24943.	Application
NATURE OF		DAYAND HOUR OF THE PRODUCTION	NAMES OF THE PARTIES TO IT	REGISTRATION NUMBER
By-law no. 14	р, 200. П	17. Jay 4	bity of	
closes lane		1 9. 0 9. orlock in	It games	
Afecta Lote 8.	//¥/-2   1#	fore noon	J. 47980	
		1	, <b>.</b> .	•
•				-
		. •	Deputy District Registrar	
	27	he day of 19		· ·
·		t colorit in		
•••	24	is noon		
				-
			Deputy District Registrar	
· · · ·		he der d	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	-	19		
		t delock in		
	. 27	io 71.0071		• •
				. • •
			Dames. District Barristown	
Here is a second second		- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Departy Diminia Adjunia i	
	` Zi	Xo day of		
	•	19 at at a state of the		
		le noon		•
•				
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	•
		÷	Deputy District Registrar	
•				
		'ko dayaf 19		
•	a	ri volovk in	A second s	
	- 2	he noon		
		:		
	•		Deputy District Registrar	
	17	The day of		
		19		
		et delock in Norm		· ·
	-			
	<u>.</u>			
		* , u	Dennes District Registrar	*
	1	The day of		
Sp A		at delock in	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	2	the norm		
	· ·	· · · · · ·		
8	ļ.	·		
2 V (	•		Deputy District Registrer	1
2	*			

Cort. No. 402865 ficate of Ei THE REAL PROPERTY ACT." THE RUBAL MUNICIPALITY OF ST. JAMES. 18 now seized of an estate in fee simple in possession subject to such encumbrances liens and interests as are notified by memorandum underwritten (or endorsed hereon ) in all the spiece or parcels of land known and described as follows st Inenty-three in Block Sixteen; Lot in Block seventeen and Let Thirty-nime in Block Twenty-twe; which lets are shewn on a plan of of part of Lots Twenty and Twenty-one of the Parish of Saint James, in Manitoba, registered in Winnipeg land Titles Office as No. 1693. NESS Thave hereunto signed my name and Third rd and twenty seven. Deputy District Rogistrar for M. 9/8/5 453 Bry & 765 5-55-55 Fact

280622 272045 300 9%. 763 niicati n No. Ap, 283 DAY AND HOUR OF ITS PRODUCTION NATURE OF INSTRUMENT NAMES OF THE PARTIES TO IT in a raray bit in no. 10,200 13: 6. at 9. 0 -a the 47980 ty District Registrur De The day q 19 lacit in at the Deputy District Regis The day q 19 TURANNE ECHNERE EL MILLEN NORME j at ook in the Deputy District Rog. day of\_\_\_\_\_\_ 19 The at clock in . the Deputy District Reg TALE ADDRESS STREET, ST The day q 19 at. ocioch in Die e 11 Deputy District Reg <u>Thi</u> day q 1 19 och in at the Deputy District Regist The day q 0 19 æt oek ż the 9 Deputy District Registrar 1<u>0</u>-. 

Gort: No1409327 177 R II t C HURAL MUNICIPALITY OF ST. JAMES . THE now seized of an estate in fee simple in possession subject to is such encumbrances liens and interests as are notified by memorandum underwritten (or endorsed hereon ) in all the piece or parcel of land known and described as follows Lot Nine in Block Thirteen; which lot is shown on a plan of survey of part of Lots Twenty-two to twenty-five of the Parish of Saint James in Manitoba, registered in the Winnipeg Land Titles Office as No. 1617. IN WITNESS WHEREOF Thave hereunto signed m officed my Seal of office this Tenth Oot ober ne thousand nine hundred and twenty seven. ligned in the presence of District Rogistrar for Winnipeg,

.....

<u>ж</u>,

. Wrom No. 293061	Transfer J691	<i>.</i>	Ipplication
HATURE OF INSTRUMENT	DAY AND HOUR OF ITS PRODUCTION	NAMES OF THE PARTIES TO IT	REGISTRATION NUMBER
1 In law no. 10, 200	The mary 18/45	bity of	-
allerto methicilo	at 9.04 octock in the fore noon	to James	
appello winnen land		& 47980	
		20. 47780.	
		Deputy District Registrur	н
	The day of		<u>+</u>
	at o'clock in		
	the noon o		
•	•	Deputy District Registrar	
	The day of		┿╌───┤
	19 19 19		
	the noon		
		Deputy Instria Registrar	
	The day of 19		
	at objeck it	-	
•	440 76977	L	
		Deputy District Registrar	
	The day of		
	ai ocioch in	1	
	the norm		
	•		
		Deputy District Registrar	
	The day of		<u> </u>
	19 at delack m		
	the noon		. ,
<b>X</b>		Dense, Diania Davia	
<u>N</u>	72	ingring Literat Keytstrat	
A.	1 m <b>= day</b> qf 19		
T.	at oclock in the norm		
X			
		Deputy District Registrar	
			10

Cort. No. 419069 rateof (4 THE REAL PROPERTY ACT. UNDER THE RURAL MUNICIPALITY OF ST JAMES . now seized of an estate in fee simple in possession subject to 18 such encumbrances liens and interests as are notified by memorandum underwritten (or endorsed hereon ) in all these piecesor parcel of land known and described as follows lat Fourteen in Block Ten; Lot Nine in Block twelve; Lot Six in block Thirteen; and Lots Twenty-two and Twenty-three in Block Fourteen; COL which lots are shewn on a plan of survey of part of lots twenty-two to twenty-five of the parish of UPBANTI; C Saint James in Manitoba, registered in the Winnipeg Land Titles Office as No. 1617. 10 transf acit Nº4 WHEREOF NESS Thave hereunto signed my name and twelfth l a*l allic*e this ne hundred and twenty-eight . r*esonce g* r District Registrar lor Winnipeg **65.** 

38 No. Ression. 32/68 Application DAY AND HOUR OF ITS PRODUCTION NATURE OF INSTRUMENT NAMES OF THE PARTIES TO IT REGISTRATION NUMBER law no. 7655 The 12 185% at 9.39 lo C. 72882 delock in a æ tka Bek 14 Ŀ ۲ See Plan 6522. Deputy District Registrar By lin no. 10,200 The land 2 affects Lot at 9:04 .6 47980. the Deputy District Registrar The day of 19 at octook in the Deputy District Registrar day q 19 The <u>i</u>t ش علم 280 Deputy District Registr 744 day of . . . 19 .. at details in the. - <u>+</u> Deputy District Registrar 11 . .day q 19 lock in Deputy District Registrer day q 19 ورما ak ás ÷., Ś Deputy District Registrar 3 -76 7.9.2 HE 1.1

416051 Cert. No. ficate of Si THE REAL PROPERTY ACT." UNDE RURAL MUNICIPALITY OF ST JAMES . THE now seized of an estate in fee simple in possession subject to 18 such encumbrances liens and interests as are notified by memorandum underwritten (or endorsed hereon ) in all the fiece or parcel of land known and described as follows Lots One. Two and Ten in Black Thiries of Lets to Twenty-five of the parish of 1285 Saint James in maniteba, registered in the Winnipeg Land Titles Office as No. 1617. Mullels R. 873189 C 6 R 6 IN WITNESS WHEREOF Thave hereunto signed my name and **i<u>p</u>:1** afficed my Seal of office this One thousand nine hundred and Iventy-eight. Signed in the presence of Deputy District Registrar for Winnipeg

	Aven No.	24531 3130H	83 4}	magliasia	, 25614		Application
<u></u>	NATURE OF	r Interneterr	Der sam House	r in Productish		THE PARTIES TO IT	Receipturion Huber
$\gamma$	_	····	5	and they de			
Ilan o	n Sz.	5 fb	at Tion	f celock in	1 P	2 0	1.10
for a for	h I far N	dear Cene,,	the faces	14771		Jaywarg.	6490
1	1					- 6410	
	•			.*	· · ·	Deputy District Registrar	
	<u> </u>			1756.			
1 Seg-law	No. 10	0,200	- n	ray 1845	buly of		
cloves		e- 	at 9.04 the loves	doioch in teom	a. ga	he saga	
affects	que			····· ·		1 41980	
	· ·			-			
	•	•				Deputy District Registrer	
	•		<b>I</b> λ•	day of			1
•			at	19 orlook in	1 N 1		
<sup>.</sup> .	ч	· ·	the n	laon			
	· .						· · ·
	• 1		· · .	•		Desala District Projectory	
	<u>.</u>	Le la companya		·····		~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	ļ
		-	<i>The</i>	day of 19		ن .	
			at	ocioch m	n a seessa		
•	• • •	•	the x	:0072			
· · ·	-		· ·	4			
			÷ •			Deputy District Registrar	1. A.
				day q'		• · · · · ·	
	•			19 	· · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	· ·		the s	oodoor in			,
						Deputy District Registrar	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			The 🗌	icy of			
		· · ·	at	oolook in		•	
31	۰.	- <sup>2</sup>	the n	1 <b>00 m</b>			group a taxa ang
elle l	-		• •	· .			
				• . :	· · ·	Deputy District Registrar	
	-	-	- The				
XX .							
<u> </u>	•		at the n	orioch in 1000		· · · ·	1.
1 ( × 6"	-		••	· · ·			
200							
	· · ·			· · · ·		Deputy District Registrar	
		······································	·. ·			·····	1900







1115 % V 20 Ċ

101 22 68 8 J + 3 82 Connort aced His (184

ļ

5

1/2/19-967996 2 300 12/20 994525 2 1.90

ansjort be implication re-

Part of the second s



THE RURAL MUNICIPALITY OF ST JAMES

now seized of an astate in fee simple in possession subject to 18 such encumbrances liens and interests as are notified by memoran dum underwritten for endersed hereen fin all the est piece & parcels of land known and described as followisher Eleven in BLOCK SIX FOR TWENTY TWO IN SERVE FIGHT LOIS FIVE, TWENTY ONE AND TWENTY TWO IN BLUCK THISTLEN AND LOIS THIRTY THREE AND THIRTY FOUR

IN HE DR FWENTY TWO WHICH LOTS ARE SHEWN ON A PLAN OF SURVEY OF PART OF LOTS TWENTY AND TWENTY ONE OF THE PARTY OF SATUR JAMES IN MANITORA, REGISTERED IN THE WINNING LAND TITLES OFFICE, AS NO.1693.

WITNESS WHEREDE The hereante segned my name and day of JANDARY the day of JANUARY THIRTY ONE Prinse P \*84 hui Mallace Hanaf The R. M. of St James" 5 1-10 F. M. 14, 1950 SLF 18 1939 TRANSFER 01140 or 1. 2 3 3: 86.29465.2.2.5 marse 715-034 **T**5 23623 A. A.C. ્ય ્ય્ 1 22: 100 Reported Mare Na26.7.29. and Ke Cert. No.6 101 101 which . P. 1815.11 Pade Com Cith. for Minincherg. Ľ. 8**9.9** . - ~1

267438.) 172444 314323 314323 305673 (280736 From Nov = 33, 3) **57 1**5 Transfor 10 38380. ApplicationNATURE OF INSTRUMENT NAMES OF THE PARTIES TO IT DAY AND HOUR OF ITS PRODUCTION REGISTRATION NUMBER Plan 1693 The day of 12 celock m MARUB Cancelled as to at 723643 the ntion Loc 22 645 To only the entry the entry  $\frac{1}{2} = \frac{1}{2} = \frac{1}{2}$ A Day - Conserve Types - 10, 2, 20 Server and Andrew Andrew An St. - Depty for a bar Andrew ··· Za the ty of 72. 1.10 140  $2,\pi_{1,2},\pi_{1,2}$ St. C. Courses 1 5 CH " welevel in the second north L. S. 4.1980 Departy Listenet Reprisedant The day of 1.9 colook in althcnccnIn many Indexet Maletian The day of 19 velock in al140 nien Tugata District Begindean The dan of 14 colorie m atthencen In puty District Reasonance The day of *,*,9 alweleek in 1 46 68 11 the1111171 Deputy Instruct Reposition The day of 1.9 atNeters in the nirri Tunata District Registras

-144

-



IN WITNESS WHEREOF

. Thave become signed my name and afficient may lead of office then THENTY-EIGHTH Const theorem of nine handred and thirdy NINE TWENTY-EIGHTH

day of FEBRUARY

Signed in the presence of

1 have

(196-Basa

Deputy Instruct Registrac for Minihey

- Transford 53 7 8 9 150m Sec. 1185290 . publication NAMES OF THE PARTIES TO D NATURE OF INSTRUMENT UNY AND HOUR OF MS PRODUCTION PEGISI WIDON NUMBER 2 20 miles and the first and t Aug - taur 14 - 16, 266 - mar 17 Tang School - Guidelforth St. 19 20 - 19 20 - 19 & Destruction - Alfred the government Sector Constant .... En 4793.C and here land Tugary District Repairios the dayer 1.9 d an tale de der arra Jugarne marine Degeneral distant. . 5 11 Richard In  $t \in \mathbb{R}^{d}$ dere p They any Substitute Degistrian 124 dansel 1.14 a chunh sh the ner n Ingunty Instruct Requestion dadag 1.14 u. x < 0.0000Acres Legency Westwork Reportan 140 dad of 12 and the solo 11 der Sugar Departy Institute Bry draw 140 and of 1.10 Section 2 at 11. Rech 14000 In just maintener Brahetras

. . . . . . . . .

\_.\_ .. . .

......

-----


# D AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS











	Date: 1988	Client: City of Winnipeg
1121	Obtained from: Canada Map Sales	Location: 2055 Ness Avenue,
	Project No.: CA0000644.3039	Winnipeg, Manitoba





### **APPENDIX**

# **E-1** ERIS ECOLOG SEARCH RESULTS



## DATABASE REPORT

**Project Property:** 

Project No: Report Type: Order No: Requested by: Date Completed: SJCC Phase 1 ESA 2055 Ness Avenue Winnipeg MB R3J 0Z2 231-0xxxx-00 SJCC P1ESA Standard Report 23031600501 WSP Canada Inc. March 21, 2023

### Table of Contents

Table of Contents	2
Executive Summary	3
Executive Summary: Report Summary	4
Executive Summary: Site Report Summary - Project Property	6
Executive Summary: Site Report Summary - Surrounding Properties	7
Executive Summary: Summary By Data Source	8
Мар	9
Aerial	10
Topographic Map	11
Detail Report	12
Unplottable Summary	14
Unplottable Report	15
Appendix: Database Descriptions	16
Definitions	22

### Notice: IMPORTANT LIMITATIONS and YOUR LIABILITY

Reliance on information in Report: This report DOES NOT replace a full Phase I Environmental Site Assessment but is solely intended to be used as a database review of environmental records.

License for use of information in Report: No page of this report can be used without this cover page, this notice and the project property identifier. The information in Report(s) may not be modified or re-sold.

Your Liability for misuse: Using this Service and/or its reports in a manner contrary to this Notice or your agreement will be in breach of copyright and contract and ERIS may obtain damages for such mis-use, including damages caused to third parties, and gives ERIS the right to terminate your account, rescind your license to any previous reports and to bar you from future use of the Service.

No warranty of Accuracy or Liability for ERIS: The information contained in this report has been produced by ERIS Information Limited Partnership ("ERIS") using various sources of information, including information provided by Federal and Provincial government departments. The report applies only to the address and up to the date specified on the cover of this report, and any alterations or deviation from this description will require a new report. This report and the data contained herein does not purport to be and does not constitute a guarantee of the accuracy of the information contained herein and does not constitute a legal opinion nor medical advice. Although ERIS has endeavored to present you with information that is accurate, ERIS disclaims, any and all liability for any errors, omissions, or inaccuracies in such information and data, whether attributable to inadvertence, negligence or otherwise, and for any consequences arising therefrom. Liability on the part of ERIS is limited to the monetary value paid for this report.

**Trademark and Copyright:** You may not use the ERIS trademarks or attribute any work to ERIS other than as outlined above. This Service and Report (s) are protected by copyright owned by ERIS Information Limited Partnership. Copyright in data used in the Service or Report(s) (the "Data") is owned by ERIS or its licensors. The Service, Report(s) and Data may not be copied or reproduced in whole or in any substantial part without prior written consent of ERIS.

### **Executive Summary**

### Property Information:

**Project Property:** 

SJCC Phase 1 ESA 2055 Ness Avenue Winnipeg MB R3J 0Z2

**Project No:** 

231-0xxxx-00 SJCC P1ESA

### **Coordinates:**

Latitude:	49.8857969
Longitude:	-97.2344579
UTM Northing:	5,527,427.82
UTM Easting:	626,827.33
UTM Zone:	14U
Elevation:	756 FT
	230.36 M

### Order Information:

Order No:	23031600501
Date Requested:	March 16, 2023
Requested by:	WSP Canada Inc.
Report Type:	Standard Report

### Historical/Products:

**ERIS Xplorer** 

ERIS Xplorer

### Executive Summary: Report Summary

Database	Name	Searched	Project Property	Within 0.25 km	Total
AUWR	Automobile Wrecking & Supplies	Y	0	0	0
CA	Certificates of Approval	Y	0	0	0
CDRY	Dry Cleaning Facilities	Y	0	0	0
CHEM	Chemical Manufacturers	Y	0	0	0
СНМ	Chemical Register	Y	0	0	0
CNG	Compressed Natural Gas Stations	Y	0	0	0
CONV	Enforcement Actions	Y	0	0	0
CS	Contaminated/Impacted Sites	Y	0	0	0
DRL	Drill Holes	Y	0	0	0
EEM	Environmental Effects Monitoring	Y	0	0	0
EHS	ERIS Historical Searches	Y	0	0	0
EIIS	Environmental Issues Inventory System	Y	0	0	0
FCON	Federal Convictions	Y	0	0	0
FCS	Contaminated Sites on Federal Land	Y	0	0	0
FRST	Federal Identification Registry for Storage Tank Systems	Y	0	0	0
FST	(Firs15) Fuel Storage Tanks	Y	0	0	0
FUEL	Bulk Fuel Distributors	Y	0	0	0
GEN	Waste Generators Summary	Y	5	0	5
GHG	Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Large Facilities	Y	0	0	0
IAFT	Indian & Northern Affairs Fuel Tanks	Y	0	0	0
MAST	Manure Storage Facilities	Y	0	0	0
MINE	Canadian Mine Locations	Y	0	0	0
MNR	Mineral Occurrences	Y	0	0	0
MOGW	Manitoba Oil and Gas Wells	Y	0	0	0
NATE	National Analysis of Trends in Emergencies System (NATES)	Y	0	0	0
NDFT	National Defense & Canadian Forces Fuel Tanks	Y	0	0	0
NDSP	National Defense & Canadian Forces Spills	Y	0	0	0
NDWD	National Defence & Canadian Forces Waste Disposal Sites	Y	0	0	0
NEBI	National Energy Board Pipeline Incidents	Y	0	0	0
NEBP	National Energy Board Wells	Y	0	0	0
NEES	National Environmental Emergencies System (NEES)	Y	0	0	0
NPCB	National PCB Inventory	Y	0	0	0
NPRI	National Pollutant Release Inventory	Y	0	0	0
OGWW	Oil and Gas Wells	Y	0	0	0
PAP	Canadian Pulp and Paper	Y	0	0	0
PCB	Inventory of PCB Storage Sites	Y	0	0	0

erisinfo.com | Environmental Risk Information Services

Database	Name	Searched	Project Property	Within 0.25 km	Total
PCFT	Parks Canada Fuel Storage Tanks	Y	0	0	0
PITS	Manitoba Pits and Quarries	Y	0	0	0
PR	Sustainable Development Public Registry	Y	0	0	0
REC	Waste Receivers Summary	Y	0	0	0
RST	Retail Fuel Storage Tanks	Y	0	0	0
SCT	Scott's Manufacturing Directory	Y	0	1	1
SPL	Manitoba Spills	Y	0	0	0
SWS	Solid Waste Sites	Y	0	0	0
TCFT	Transport Canada Fuel Storage Tanks	Y	0	0	0
WDS	Waste Disposal Site Inventory	Y	0	0	0
WWIS	Water Well Inventory	Y	0	0	0
		Total:	5	1	6

### Executive Summary: Site Report Summary - Project Property

Мар Кеу	DB	Company/Site Name	Address	Dir/Dist (m)	Elev diff (m)	Page Number
1	GEN	ASSINIBOINE GOLF CLUB	NESS AVE., 2045 WINNIPEG MB R3J 0Z1	-/0.0	0.00	<u>12</u>
<u>1</u>	GEN	ASSINIBOINE GOLF CLUB	2045 NESS AVE Winnipeg MB R3J 0Z1	-/0.0	0.00	<u>12</u>
<u>1</u>	GEN	ST JAMES CIVIC CENTRE	2055 NESS AVE Winnipeg MB R3J 0Z2	-/0.0	0.00	<u>12</u>
1	GEN	ST JAMES CIVIC CENTRE	2055 NESS AVE Winnipeg MB	-/0.0	0.00	<u>12</u>
<u>1</u>	GEN	ASSINIBOINE GOLF CLUB	2045 NESS AVE Winnipeg MB	-/0.0	0.00	<u>12</u>

### Executive Summary: Site Report Summary - Surrounding Properties

Map Key	DB	Company/Site Name	Address	Dir/Dist (m)	Elev Diff (m)	Page Number
<u>2</u>	SCT	Weatherwise Tent Rentals	382 Belvidere St Winnipeg MB R3J 2H3	SE/217.0	0.00	<u>12</u>

### Executive Summary: Summary By Data Source

### **GEN** - Waste Generators Summary

A search of the GEN database, dated 1998 - Sep 2022 has found that there are 5 GEN site(s) within approximately 0.25 kilometers of the project property.

Equal/Higher Elevation	Address NESSAVE 2045	Direction	<b>Distance (m)</b>	Map Key
	WINNIPEG MB R3J 0Z1			1
ASSINIBOINE GOLF CLUB	2045 NESS AVE Winnipeg MB R3J 0Z1	-	0.00	<u>1</u>
ST JAMES CIVIC CENTRE	2055 NESS AVE Winnipeg MB R3J 0Z2	-	0.00	<u>1</u>
ST JAMES CIVIC CENTRE	2055 NESS AVE Winnipeg MB	-	0.00	<u>1</u>
ASSINIBOINE GOLF CLUB	2045 NESS AVE Winnipeg MB	-	0.00	1

### **<u>SCT</u>** - Scott's Manufacturing Directory

A search of the SCT database, dated 1992-Mar 2011\* has found that there are 1 SCT site(s) within approximately 0.25 kilometers of the project property.

Equal/Higher Elevation	Address	<b>Direction</b>	<u>Distance (m)</u>	<u>Map Key</u>
Weatherwise Tent Rentals	382 Belvidere St Winnipeg MB R3J 2H3	SE	216.99	<u>2</u>



Source: © 2021 ESRI StreetMap Premium.

© ERIS Information Limited Partnership



### Aerial Year: 2022

### Address: 2055 Ness Avenue, Winnipeg, MB

Source: ESRI World Imagery

Order Number: 23031600501



© ERIS Information Limited Partnership



### **Topographic Map**

### Order Number: 23031600501



Address: 2055 Ness Avenue, MB

Source: ESRI World Topographic Map

© ERIS Information Limited Partnership

### Detail Report

Мар Кеу	Number of Records	Direction/ Distance (m)	Elev/Diff (m)	Site	DB
<u>1</u>	1 of 5	-/0.0	230.4/ 0.00	ASSINIBOINE GOLF CLUB NESS AVE., 2045 WINNIPEG MB R3J 0Z1	GEN
Registration SIC: DLS:	No:	MBG007509			
<u>1</u>	2 of 5	-/0.0	230.4 / 0.00	ASSINIBOINE GOLF CLUB 2045 NESS AVE Winnipeg MB R3J 0Z1	GEN
Registration SIC: DLS:	No:	MBG07509			
<u>1</u>	3 of 5	-/0.0	230.4/ 0.00	ST JAMES CIVIC CENTRE 2055 NESS AVE Winnipeg MB R3J 0Z2	GEN
Registration SIC: DLS:	No:	MBG10294			
<u>1</u>	4 of 5	-/0.0	230.4/ 0.00	ST JAMES CIVIC CENTRE 2055 NESS AVE Winnipeg MB	GEN
Registration SIC: DLS:	No:	MBG10294			
<u>1</u>	5 of 5	-/0.0	230.4/ 0.00	ASSINIBOINE GOLF CLUB 2045 NESS AVE Winnipeg MB	GEN
Registration SIC: DLS:	No:	MBG07509			
2	1 of 1	SE/217.0	230.4 / 0.00	Weatherwise Tent Rentals 382 Belvidere St Winnipeg MB R3J 2H3	SCT
Established: Plant Size (ft	<sup>2</sup> ):	1999			
Employment	:	2			

12

<u>--Details--</u> Description: SIC/NAICS Code:

Textile Bag and Canvas Mills 314910

### Unplottable Summary

### Total: <u>3</u> Unplottable sites

DB	Company Name/Site Name	Address	City	Postal
FUEL	CANADA SAFEWAY - NESS AVE	NESS AVE	Winnipeg MB	
PR	Incinerator For The Burning Of Type 2 Waste	St. James Vocational School, Ness Avenue	Winnipeg MB	
PR	Ness Bridge Stream Channel Alteration	Ness Avenue	Winnipeg MB	

### **Unplottable Report**

### Site: CANADA SAFEWAY - NESS AVE Database: FUEL NESS AVE Winnipeg MB 31-Dec-15 Permit No: 33816 Expiry Date: Type of Facility: U/G Office: Region: Comment: Site: Incinerator For The Burning Of Type 2 Waste Database: St. James Vocational School, Ness Avenue Winnipeg MB PR File No: 387.00 Licence No: 659 1977-02-16 Licence Issue Date: Proponent Licencee: The St. James Assiniboia School Division No. 40 Project Name: Incinerator For The Burning Of Type 2 Waste Status: Completed Comment Deadline Date: **Project Summary:** EAB Contact Person: EAB Contact Person Email: 2014-11-19 Last Date Modified: Region: City: Winnipeg DLS: Location: St. James Vocational School, Ness Avenue File No URL: Licence No URL: https://www.gov.mb.ca/sd/eal/archive/2014licence.updates/659-387-00.pdf Project Summary URL:

### <u>Site:</u> Ness Bridge Stream Channel Alteration Ness Avenue Winnipeg MB

Licence No:3157Licence Issue Date:2015-11-09Proponent Licencee:City of WinnipegProject Name:Ness Bridge Stream Channel AlterationStatus:CompletedComment Deadline Date:Froject Summary:Project Summary:SummaryEAB Contact Person:Bruce WebbEAB Contact Person Email:mailto:bruce.webb@gov.mb.caLast Date Modified:2015-10-23Region:CentralCity:WinnipegDLS:Location:Location:Ness AvenueFile No URL:https://www.gov.mb.ca/sd/eal/registries/5790ness/index.html	File No:	5790.00
Licence Issue Date:2015-11-09Proponent Licencee:City of WinnipegProject Name:Ness Bridge Stream Channel AlterationStatus:CompletedComment Deadline Date:Froject Summary:Project Summary:SummaryEAB Contact Person:Bruce WebbEAB Contact Person Email:mailto:bruce.webb@gov.mb.caLast Date Modified:2015-10-23Region:CentralCity:WinnipegDLS:Location:Location:Ness AvenueFile No URL:https://www.gov.mb.ca/sd/eal/registries/5790ness/index.html	Licence No:	3157
Proponent Licencee:City of WinnipegProject Name:Ness Bridge Stream Channel AlterationStatus:CompletedComment Deadline Date:Froject Summary:Project Summary:SummaryEAB Contact Person:Bruce WebbEAB Contact Person Email:mailto:bruce.webb@gov.mb.caLast Date Modified:2015-10-23Region:CentralCity:WinnipegDLS:Location:Location:Ness AvenueFile No URL:https://www.gov.mb.ca/sd/eal/registries/5790ness/index.html	Licence Issue Date:	2015-11-09
Project Name:Ness Bridge Stream Channel AlterationStatus:CompletedComment Deadline Date:SummaryProject Summary:SummaryEAB Contact Person:Bruce WebbEAB Contact Person Email:mailto:bruce.webb@gov.mb.caLast Date Modified:2015-10-23Region:CentralCity:WinnipegDLS:Location:Ince StreamNess AvenueFile No URL:https://www.gov.mb.ca/sd/eal/registries/5790ness/index.html	Proponent Licencee:	City of Winnipeg
Status:       Completed         Comment Deadline Date:       Froject Summary:         Project Summary:       Summary         EAB Contact Person:       Bruce Webb         EAB Contact Person Email:       mailto:bruce.webb@gov.mb.ca         Last Date Modified:       2015-10-23         Region:       Central         City:       Winnipeg         DLS:       Location:         File No URL:       https://www.gov.mb.ca/sd/eal/registries/5790ness/index.html	Project Name:	Ness Bridge Stream Channel Alteration
Comment Deadline Date:         Project Summary:       Summary         EAB Contact Person:       Bruce Webb         EAB Contact Person Email:       mailto:bruce.webb@gov.mb.ca         Last Date Modified:       2015-10-23         Region:       Central         City:       Winnipeg         DLS:       Location:         Kess Avenue       https://www.gov.mb.ca/sd/eal/registries/5790ness/index.html	Status:	Completed
Project Summary:       Summary         EAB Contact Person:       Bruce Webb         EAB Contact Person Email:       mailto:bruce.webb@gov.mb.ca         Last Date Modified:       2015-10-23         Region:       Central         City:       Winnipeg         DLS:       Location:         Ness Avenue       https://www.gov.mb.ca/sd/eal/registries/5790ness/index.html	Comment Deadline Date:	
EAB Contact Person:       Bruce Webb         EAB Contact Person Email:       mailto:bruce.webb@gov.mb.ca         Last Date Modified:       2015-10-23         Region:       Central         City:       Winnipeg         DLS:       Location:         Ness Avenue       https://www.gov.mb.ca/sd/eal/registries/5790ness/index.html	Project Summary:	Summary
EAB Contact Person Email:       mailto:bruce.webb@gov.mb.ca         Last Date Modified:       2015-10-23         Region:       Central         City:       Winnipeg         DLS:       Location:         File No URL:       https://www.gov.mb.ca/sd/eal/registries/5790ness/index.html	EAB Contact Person:	Bruce Webb
Last Date Modified:       2015-10-23         Region:       Central         City:       Winnipeg         DLS:       Location:         File No URL:       https://www.gov.mb.ca/sd/eal/registries/5790ness/index.html	EAB Contact Person Email:	mailto:bruce.webb@gov.mb.ca
Region:     Central       City:     Winnipeg       DLS:       Location:     Ness Avenue       File No URL:     https://www.gov.mb.ca/sd/eal/registries/5790ness/index.html	Last Date Modified:	2015-10-23
City:     Winnipeg       DLS:     Vess Avenue       File No URL:     Ness Avenue	Region:	Central
DLS:         Location:         File No URL:    Ness Avenue https://www.gov.mb.ca/sd/eal/registries/5790ness/index.html	City:	Winnipeg
Location: Ness Avenue File No URL: https://www.gov.mb.ca/sd/eal/registries/5790ness/index.html	DLS:	
File No URL: https://www.gov.mb.ca/sd/eal/registries/5790ness/index.html	Location:	Ness Avenue
······································	File No URL:	https://www.gov.mb.ca/sd/eal/registries/5790ness/index.html
Licence No URL: https://www.gov.mb.ca/sd/eal/registries/5790ness/licence3157.pdf	Licence No URL:	https://www.gov.mb.ca/sd/eal/registries/5790ness/licence3157.pdf
Project Summary URL: https://www.gov.mb.ca/sd/eal/registries/5790ness/summary.pdf	Project Summary URL:	https://www.gov.mb.ca/sd/eal/registries/5790ness/summary.pdf

Database: PR

### Appendix: Database Descriptions

Environmental Risk Information Services (ERIS) can search the following databases. The extent of historical information varies with each database and current information is determined by what is publicly available to ERIS at the time of update. Note: Databases denoted with " \* " indicates that the database will no longer be updated. See the individual database description for more information.

Automobile Wrecking & Supplies: Private AUWR This database provides an inventory of known locations that are involved in the scrap metal, automobile wrecking/recycling, and automobile parts & supplies industry. Information is provided on the company name, location and business type.

Government Publication Date: 1999-May 31, 2022

Provincial Certificates of Approval: CA This database contains approvals issued since July 1988 within the following categories: Approvals for Air or Effluent and Orders, Permits and/or Regulated Sites designations for Air, Effluent, Refuse or Storage. The information available within this database pertains to client information, general location, class type, operation type, license # and the issue date of the CA. Please note that no specific site address information is available. Government Publication Date: 1988-Jun 2013\*

Dry Cleaning Facilities: Federal CDRY List of dry cleaning facilities made available by Environment and Climate Change Canada. Environment and Climate Change Canada's Tetrachloroethylene (Use in Dry Cleaning and Reporting Requirements) Regulations (SOR/2003-79) are intended to reduce releases of tetrachloroethylene to the environment from dry cleaning facilities. Government Publication Date: Jan 2004-Dec 2020

**Chemical Manufacturers:** Private CHFM The Manitoba Industry, Trade and Tourism department maintains a chemical register of all known 'active' manufacturers of chemicals, fertilizers and pesticides within the province. Inactive chemical manufacturers are not required to remain in the database. Information available within this register pertains to company name, location and the 'product line'.

This database includes a listing of locations of facilities within the Province or Territory that either manufacture and/or distributes chemicals.

### **Compressed Natural Gas Stations:**

Chemical Register:

**Enforcement Actions:** 

### refuelling is located at existing retail gasoline that have a separate refuelling island for natural gas. This list of stations is made available by the Canadian Natural Gas Vehicle Alliance. Government Publication Date: Dec 2012 -Sep 2022

This database summarizes enforcement activities (Convictions, Warnings, Director's Order's, EO Order's, MOH Order's, Offence Notice's, and Permit Suspensions) where companies/individual have been found guilty of environmental offenses under Manitoba's Environmental Protection Legislation. Please note that enforcement actions resulting from activities regulated under the Livestock Manure & Mortalities Mamt Regulation MR 42/98 are also included.

CS List of sites registered under the Contaminated/Impacted Sites Program, made available by Manitoba Sustainable Development, Environmental Programs and Strategies branch. Includes sites that are on the Designated Impacted and Designated Contaminated Sites lists, as well as sites where impacts do not pose a concern, remediation has been completed, or further action is necessary.

Government Publication Date: Up to Mar 2021

Government Publication Date: 1999-Jan 31, 2020

Government Publication Date: 1999-May 31, 2022

Canada has a network of public access compressed natural gas (CNG) refuelling stations. These stations dispense natural gas in compressed form at 3,000 pounds per square inch (psi), the pressure which is allowed within the current Canadian codes and standards. The majority of natural gas

Government Publication Date: Apr 1994-Mar 2022

Contaminated/Impacted Sites:

CHM

CNG

CONV

Private

Private

Provincial

Provincial

### Order No: 23031600501

### Drill Holes:

### The "Open File Drill Holes" database contains information on more than 10.000 drill holes in the province of Manitoba. The database provides information in regard to drill hole location (place, latitude and longitude), depth and overburden of hole, exploration company and assessment report year. Government Publication Date: Jan 31, 2023

Environmental Effects Monitoring: FFM The Environmental Effects Monitoring program assesses the effects of effluent from industrial or other sources on fish, fish habitat and human usage of fisheries resources. Since 1992, pulp and paper mills have been required to conduct EEM studies under the Pulp and Paper Effluent Regulations. This database provides information on the mill name, geographical location and sub-lethal toxicity data.

Government Publication Date: 1992-2007\*

### ERIS Historical Searches:

Federal Convictions:

Fuel Storage Tanks:

17

ERIS has compiled a database of all environmental risk reports completed since March 1999. Available fields for this database include: site location, date of report, type of report, and search radius. As per all other databases, the ERIS database can be referenced on both the map and "Statistical Profile" page.

The Environmental Issues Inventory System was developed through the implementation of the Environmental Issues and Remediation Plan. This plan

Government Publication Date: 1999-Dec 31, 2022

### Environmental Issues Inventory System:

### was established to determine the location and severity of contaminated sites on inhabited First Nation reserves, and where necessary, to remediate those that posed a risk to health and safety; and to prevent future environmental problems. The EIIS provides information on the reserve under investigation, inventory number, name of site, environmental issue, site action (Remediation, Site Assessment), and date investigation completed. Government Publication Date: 1992-2001\*

Environment Canada maintains a database referred to as the "Environmental Registry" that details prosecutions under the Canadian Environmental Protection Act (CEPA) and the Fisheries Act (FA). Information is provided on the company name, location, charge date, offence and penalty. Government Publication Date: 1988-Jun 2007\*

### Contaminated Sites on Federal Land:

The Federal Contaminated Sites Inventory includes information on known federal contaminated sites under the custodianship of departments, agencies and consolidated Crown corporations as well as those that are being or have been investigated to determine whether they have contamination arising from past use that could pose a risk to human health or the environment. The inventory also includes non-federal contaminated sites for which the Government of Canada has accepted some or all financial responsibility. It does not include sites where contamination has been caused by, and which are under the control of, enterprise Crown corporations, private individuals, firms or other levels of government. Includes fire training sites and sites at which Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances (PFAS) are a concern.

Government Publication Date: Jun 2000-Dec 2022

### Federal Identification Registry for Storage Tank Systems (FIRSTS):

A list of federally regulated Storage tanks from the Federal Identification Registry for Storage Tank Systems (FIRSTS). FIRSTS is Environment and Climate Change Canada's database of storage tank systems subject to the Storage Tank for Petroleum Products and Allied Petroleum Products Regulations. The main objective of the Regulations is to prevent soil and groundwater contamination from storage tank systems located on federal and aboriginal lands. Storage tank systems that do not have a valid identification number displayed in a readily visible location on or near the storage tank system may be refused product delivery. Government Publication Date: May 31, 2018

The Petroleum Storage Tank database, which is maintained by Manitoba's Petroleum Storage Program, contains information in regard to company name, location, status, outlet type (retail, used oil, bulk/used'), number of tanks, tank capacity and tank status. This database will not be updated as this information is no longer collected in this format. For current information regarding bulk fuel distributors, please see the FUEL database. Government Publication Date: 1905-Feb 2003\*

**Bulk Fuel Distributors:** Petroleum and allied product storage facilities are issued operating permits in accordance with the Regulation. This inventory contains a listing of current valid operating permits maintained by Government of Manitoba department of Environment, Climate and Parks. Fields such as Permit Number, Operation Name, Type of Facility, City/Municipality, and Region are included.

Government Publication Date: 2006 - Dec 2022

Provincial

DRL

EHS

FIIS

FCS

FRST

Federal

Federal

Federal

Private

**FCON** 

Federal

Federal

Provincial

### Provincial

### FUEL

**FST** 

18

### Waste Generators Summary: Within Manitoba, a waste generator is defined as any site, equipment and/or operation involved in the production, collection, handling and/or storage of regulated wastes. A generator of regulated waste is required to register the waste generation site and each waste produced, collected, handled or

dioxide equivalents (kt CO2 eq).

Manure Storage Facilities:

Government Publication Date: 1998 - Sep 2022

Manitoba's Hazardous Waste Program.

### Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Large Facilities: List of greenhouse gas emissions from large facilities made available by Environment Canada. Greenhouse gas emissions in kilotonnes of carbon

### Indian & Northern Affairs Fuel Tanks:

Government Publication Date: 2013-Dec 2019

The Department of Indian & Northern Affairs Canada (INAC) maintains an inventory of aboveground & underground fuel storage tanks located on both federal and crown land. Our inventory provides information on the reserve name, location, facility type, site/facility name, tank type, material & ID number, tank contents & capacity, and date of tank installation. Government Publication Date: 1950-Aug 2003\*

access to the type of hazardous waste generated and the form of treatment used in the handling of the waste is only available by directly calling

Under the Livestock Manure and Mortalities Management Regulation (MR 42/98), permits are issued for the construction, modification or expansion of manure storage facilities. Once issued, the Environmental Livestock Program is responsible for the enforcement of regulations on the management of manure and mortalities. Please note that the MAST database only provides information on permit number, operation name, RM and permit issue date. All other information must be obtained from MB Conservation.

Canadian Mine Locations: Private MINF This information is collected from the Canadian & American Mines Handbook. The Mines database is a national database that provides over 290 listings on mines (listed as public companies) dealing primarily with precious metals and hard rocks. Listed are mines that are currently in operation, closed, suspended, or are still being developed (advanced projects). Their locations are provided as geographic coordinates (x, y and/or longitude, latitude). As of 2002, data pertaining to Canadian smelters and refineries has been appended to this database.

Government Publication Date: 1998-2009\*

Government Publication Date: Jul 1994-Sep 2022

For over 25 years, Manitoba has been compiling Mineral Inventory Cards on mineral deposits in the province. This database was obtained from Manitoba Industry, Trade and Mines, and contains information on over 650 mineral occurrences in the province. Data is provided on the Mineral Inventory File No., Mineral Deposit Name, Product, Associated Minerals or Products of Value, NTS area, Name of Property Owner or Operator and Address, location, and geographical coordinates.

Government Publication Date: 1961-Mar 2022

### Manitoba Oil and Gas Wells:

Mineral Occurrences:

The Manitoba Oil and Gas Wells database was collected through the assistance of The Land Systems Company. Information is provided regarding license number and location for over 4,800 wells. Please note that this database will not be updated, information on wells drilled after May 2002 can be found in the Oil and Gas Wells (OGW) database under the `Private Source Database' section.

Government Publication Date: 1951-May 2002\*

### National Analysis of Trends in Emergencies System (NATES):

In 1974 Environment Canada established the National Analysis of Trends in Emergencies System (NATES) database, for the voluntary reporting of significant spill incidents. The data was to be used to assist in directing the work of the emergencies program. NATES ran from 1974 to 1994. Extensive information is available within this database including company names, place where the spill occurred, date of spill, cause, reason and source of spill, damage incurred, and amount, concentration, and volume of materials released. Government Publication Date: 1974-1994\*

National Defense & Canadian Forces Fuel Tanks: The Department of National Defense and the Canadian Forces maintains an inventory of all aboveground & underground fuel storage tanks located on DND lands. Our inventory provides information on the base name, location, tank type & capacity, tank contents, tank class, date of tank installation, date tank last used, and status of tank as of May 2001. This database will no longer be updated due to the new National Security protocols which have prohibited any release of this database.

Government Publication Date: Up to May 2001\*

Federal

MAST

Provincial

Provincial

Federal

Provincial

Federal

Provincial

**MNR** 

MOGW

NATE

Federal



### stored at the site. This database contains the licensing/registration number (MB1 #), company name and address of registered generators. At present,

GEN

GHG

IAFT

### The Department of National Defense and the Canadian Forces maintains an inventory of spills to land and water. All spill sites have been classified under the "Transportation of Dangerous Goods Act - 1992". Our inventory provides information on the facility name, location, spill ID #, spill date, type

### National Defence & Canadian Forces Waste Disposal Sites:

of spill, as well as the quantity of substance spilled & recovered.

### National Energy Board Pipeline Incidents:

### (NEB). Includes incidents reported under the Onshore Pipeline Regulations and the Processing Plant Regulations related to pipelines under federal jurisdiction, does not include incident data related to pipelines under provincial or territorial jurisdiction. Government Publication Date: 2008-Jun 30, 2021

The NEBW database contains information on onshore & offshore oil and gas wells that are outside provincial jurisdiction(s) and are thereby regulated by the National Energy Board. Data is provided regarding the operator, well name, well ID No./UWI, status, classification, well depth, spud and release date.

Locations of pipeline incidents from 2008 to present, made available by the Canada Energy Regulator (CER) - previously the National Energy Board

Government Publication Date: 1920-Feb 2003\*

National Energy Board Wells:

### National Environmental Emergencies System (NEES):

In 2000, the Emergencies program implemented NEES, a reporting system for spills of hazardous substances. For the most part, this system only captured data from the Atlantic Provinces, some from Quebec and Ontario and a portion from British Columbia. Data for Alberta, Saskatchewan, Manitoba and the Territories was not captured. However, NEES is also a repository for previous Environment Canada spill datasets. NEES is composed of the historic datasets ' or Trends ' which dates from approximately 1974 to present. NEES Trends is a compilation of historic databases, which were merged and includes data from NATES (National Analysis of Trends in Emergencies System), ARTS (Atlantic Regional Trends System), and NEES. In 2001, the Emergencies Program determined that variations in reporting regimes and requirements between federal and provincial agencies made national spill reporting and trend analysis difficult to achieve. As a consequence, the department has focused efforts on capturing data on spills of substances which fall under its legislative authority only (CEPA and FA). As such, the NEES database will be decommissioned in December 2004.

Government Publication Date: 1974-2003\*

National PCB Inventory:

### Environment Canada's National PCB inventory includes information on in-use PCB containing equipment in Canada including federal, provincial and private facilities. Federal out-of-service PCB containing equipment and PCB waste owned by the federal government or by federally regulated industries such as airlines, railway companies, broadcasting companies, telephone and telecommunications companies, pipeline companies, etc. are also listed. Although it is not Environment Canada's mandate to collect data on non-federal PCB waste, the National PCB inventory includes some information on provincial and private PCB waste and storage sites. Some addresses provided may be Head Office addresses and are not necessarily the location of where the waste is being used or stored. Government Publication Date: 1988-2008\*

### National Pollutant Release Inventory:

Government Publication Date: 1993-May 2017

### Oil and Gas Wells:

19

The Nickle's Energy Group (publisher of the Daily Oil Bulletin) collects information on drilling activity including operator and well statistics. The well information database includes name, location, class, status and depth. The main Nickle's database is updated on a daily basis, however, this database is updated on a monthly basis. More information is available at www.nickles.com. Government Publication Date: 1988-Nov 30, 2022

Canadian Pulp and Paper: This information is part of the Pulp and Paper Canada Directory. The Directory provides a comprehensive listing of the locations of pulp and paper mills and the products that they produce.

Government Publication Date: 1999, 2002, 2004, 2005, 2009-2014

Federal

Federal

Federal

Federal

Federal

comprehensive national data regarding releases to air, water, or land, and waste transfers for recycling for more than 300 listed substances.

Private

Private

### Federal

NEBP

NPCB

**NPRI** 

OGWW

PAP

NDSP

NDWD

NEBI

NFFS

Federal Environment Canada has defined the National Pollutant Release Inventory ("NPRI") as a federal government initiative designed to collect

### National Defense & Canadian Forces Spills:

Government Publication Date: Mar 1999-Apr 2018

The Department of National Defence and the Canadian Forces maintains an inventory of waste disposal sites located on DND lands. Where available, our inventory provides information on the base name, location, type of waste received, area of site, depth of site, year site opened/closed and status. Government Publication Date: 2001-Apr 2007\*

### Order No: 23031600501

Transport Canada Fuel Storage Tanks: TCFT List of fuel storage tanks currently or previously owned or operated by Transport Canada. This inventory also includes tanks on The Pickering Lands, which refers to 7,530 hectares (18,600 acres) of land in Pickering, Markham, and Uxbridge owned by the Government of Canada since 1972; properties on this land has been leased by the government since 1975, and falls under the Site Management Policy of Transport Canada, but is administered by Public Works and Government Services Canada. This inventory provides information on the site name, location, tank age, capacity and fuel type.

Government Publication Date: 1970 - Apr 2020

Government Publication Date: Mar 2022

### Government Publication Date: 1998-Jul 2017

Development.

Scott's Directories is a data bank containing information on over 200,000 manufacturers across Canada. Even though Scott's listings are voluntary, it is the most comprehensive database of Canadian manufacturers available. Information concerning a company's address, plant size, and main products are included in this database.

Government Publication Date: 1992-Mar 2011\*

The Manitoba Conservation Environmental Management System (EMS) records spills from across the province. Information from this database includes incident type, substance type, reason, location of spill, contaminate info and responsible party.

Government Publication Date: Apr 2009-Jun 2022

Locations of solid waste sites and waste transfer stations registered with the Waste Reduction and Recycling Support (WRARS) Program, as well as First Nation landfills. Includes Class 1, 2, and 3 Solid Waste Sites, First Nation Solid Waste Sites, and Waste Transfer Stations. First Nations data was sourced from Indigenous and Northern Affairs Canada (INAC). Made available by Manitoba Government.

Manitoba Spills: SPL

Provincial Solid Waste Sites: SWS

Disposal of regulated waste is maintained through an operating waste management system or a waste disposal site operated or used pursuant to the terms and conditions of a Certificate of Approval or a Provisional Certificate of Approval. A waste receiving location is any site or facility to which waste is transferred through a waste carrier. A receiver of regulated waste is required to register the waste receiving facility. This database represents

Retail Fuel Storage Tanks: RST This database includes an inventory of retail fuel outlet locations (including marinas) that have on their property gasoline, oil, waste oil, natural gas and / or propane storage tanks. Government Publication Date: 1999-May 31, 2022

Scott's Manufacturing Directory: Private SCT

term with exclusive rights for crown minerals. Quarry Exploration permits have a three year term with exclusive rights. 2. Private Pits and Quarry Permits require annual registration of private aggregate operations in the province and 3. Casual Permits which are for annual permits of Crown

Manitoba Pits and Quarries:

registered receivers of regulated wastes, identified by company name and address.

erisinfo.com | Environmental Risk Information Services

Provincial PITS The Manitoba Pits and Quarries database is comprised of 3 different types of permits. 1. Quarry Lease and Exploration Permits, which have a ten year

Government Publication Date: 1998-1999\* Parks Canada Fuel Storage Tanks: Federal

found in the National PCB Inventory (NPCB) database. PCFT

Manitoba's Hazardous Waste Program maintains a listing of all "active" PCB storage facilities. Inactive PCB storage equipment and/or disposal sites are not required to remain as part of the PCB inventory database for the province. Please note that some of the sites have no wastes in storage at present, but are retained should they be required for future acceptance of PCB equipment as it comes out of service. The records within this database only provide information on facility name and location. Information pertaining to the inventory of stored wastes and waste quantities at a designated site is only available by directly contacting the Hazardous Waste Program. Please note that this database will not be updated, information after 1999 can be

Canadian Heritage maintains an inventory of known fuel storage tanks operated by Parks Canada, in both National Parks and at National Historic Sites.

The database details information on site name, location, tank install/removal date, capacity, fuel type, facility type, tank design and owner/operator. Government Publication Date: 1920-Jan 2005\*

materials

applying for a license under The Dangerous Goods Handling and Transportation Act. This listing is made available by Manitoba Sustainable

Government Publication Date: 1994-Aug 2022

Sustainable Development Public Registry:

Government Publication Date: Jan 31, 2021

Waste Receivers Summary:

### Inventory of PCB Storage Sites:

20

Provincial

Federal

Provincial

PR

REC

PCB

Provincial The public registry system contains information on projects that are undergoing environmental assessment under The Environmental Act and projects

Private

Provincial

### Waste Disposal Site Inventory:

Manitoba Conservation retains a separate inventory of all known active and inactive regulated waste disposal grounds and waste transfer facilities for each of the five regions in the province. Registered companies may hold a permit or certificate for release of the following waste types: Effluent, Refuse, Air and Special Waste Storage.

### Government Publication Date: 1998\*

### Water Well Inventory:

The GW Drill database compiled by the Manitoba Water Stewardship Division and Groundwater Management Program provides information on water wells across the province. The GW Drill database is a compilation of records from various sources and is intended to provide water well, stratigraphic, and hydrogeologic background information. The compilation is extensive but is not a comprehensive or complete inventory of wells in the province. For many records, location has been provided in DLS (Dominion Land Survey) format and locations may be accurate to the section or quarter section only. Any analysis or interpretation of records or the absence thereof must take into consideration that the GW Drill database is not comprehensive and should not be used as an inventory.

Government Publication Date: 1880-May 2015

### erisinfo.com | Environmental Risk Information Services

21

### WDS

### Provincial

Provincial

WWIS

### Definitions

**Database Descriptions:** This section provides a detailed explanation for each database including: source, information available, time coverage, and acronyms used. They are listed in alphabetic order.

**Detail Report**: This is the section of the report which provides the most detail for each individual record. Records are summarized by location, starting with the project property followed by records in closest proximity.

Distance: The distance value is the distance between plotted points, not necessarily the distance between the sites' boundaries. All values are an approximation.

Direction: The direction value is the compass direction of the site in respect to the project property and/or center point of the report.

*Elevation:* The elevation value is taken from the location at which the records for the site address have been plotted. All values are an approximation. Source: Google Elevation API.

*Executive Summary:* This portion of the report is divided into 3 sections:

'Report Summary'- Displays a chart indicating how many records fall on the project property and, within the report search radii.

'Site Report Summary'-Project Property'- This section lists all the records which fall on the project property. For more details, see the 'Detail Report' section.

'Site Report Summary-Surrounding Properties'- This section summarizes all records on adjacent properties, listing them in order of proximity from the project property. For more details, see the 'Detail Report' section.

<u>Map Key:</u> The map key number is assigned according to closest proximity from the project property. Map Key numbers always start at #1. The project property will always have a map key of '1' if records are available. If there is a number in brackets beside the main number, this will indicate the number of records on that specific property. If there is no number in brackets, there is only one record for that property.

The symbol and colour used indicates 'elevation': the red inverted triangle will dictate 'ERIS Sites with Lower Elevation', the yellow triangle will dictate 'ERIS Sites with Higher Elevation' and the orange square will dictate 'ERIS Sites with Same Elevation.'

<u>Unplottables:</u> These are records that could not be mapped due to various reasons, including limited geographic information. These records may or may not be in your study area, and are included as reference.



# **E-2** MEC FILE SEARCH

### Manitoba 🐂

### **Environmental File Search Request Form**

### Search Requested By

Name:Cassie BujanCompany Name:WSP Canada Inc.Email:cassie.bujan@wsp.comPhone Number:204-999-8512

### **Responder**

Environment Officer: Julie Froese

Environment Officer Phone Number: 204-945-7104

### Office Use

Date Received: 2023-03-16

File Search #: 6582

Total Fees: 126.00

Order Number: mhp23074144208p73

Date Completed: 2023-03-27

### **Environmental File Search Request Form**

Property Information #1					
Business Name(s)/Property Owner:	City of Winnipeg				
Business Type: Civic Centre					
Corporate File Number:					
Legal Land Description					
Municipality: Winnipeg - City of Wi	nnipeg				
Roll Number: 07051908000		File Number:			
Nearest Road/Street Intersection:	Ness Avenue and Guilf	ord Street			
Civic Address					
Street Address: 2055 Ness Avenue	9		Postal Code:	R3J0Z2	
911 Address					
Street Address:			Postal Code:		
Lot, Block, Plan					
Lot:	Block:		Plan:		
Section, Township, Range					
Quarter Section:	Section Inform	nation:			
Section:	Township:		Range:		Meridian
River Lot					
River Lot Number:					
Parish					
Parish Number:					
Settlement					
Settlement Number:					
GPS Coordinates					
Latitude:		Longitude:			
Additional Information					

Additional Information:
#### **Environmental File Search Request Form**



**Disclaimer:** This response summarizes the information found in current records maintained by the Department of Conservation and Climate and is for informational purposes only. No representation or responsibility is assumed whatsoever as to the completeness of this information as it relates to the environmental condition or prior incidents associated with the property in question. In order to obtain more complete information on the property, persons may wish to retain the services of a qualified consultant for the purposes of conducting an environmental audit.

Additional Comments:

### **APPENDIX**

## **E-3** MOVEMENT DOCUMENTATION (MILLER ENVIRONMENTAL)

Modified: 04-03-2017

Print Date: 10-14-2022

# **Container Check-In Sheet**

Sales Order: 75208 Company #: 13136

Generator: Saint James Civic Centre

Return to Sales: Y Ready to Invoice: Y

2828351-3 2828351-3 Manifest D106516 2 D106516 1 Doc. # Line Item N -35657 35656 Profile Common Name RAGS C/W OIL USED OIL WITH DEBRIS Container 205 DM 205 DM DM Billing UM EW Weight Weight DM 100 100 . 100 Sample #

#### INQUIRY/SALES ORDER PICKUP FORM

#### Miller Environmental Corporation

1803 Hekla Ave Winnipeg, Manitoba MB R2R 0K3 Ph: 204-925-9600 Fax: 204-925-9601 Gen #: MBG11228

#### Sales Order: 75208

Document(s): D106516

Bill-To Name and Address Bill-To Company # 4162 City of Winnipeg - Accounts Payable Corporate Finance - Accts Payable 4th Floor Admin Bldg, 510 Main St

Winnipeg, MB R3B 1B9

Return to Winnipeg for Invoicing

#### Manitoba Environmental Center

NE 2-3-1 EPM, RM of Montcalm, MB R0G 2B0 Ph: 204-925-9600 Fax: 204-737-2161 Gen #: MBG02410

Salesperson: Carter Steinke Revenue Center: Commercial

Effective Date: 21-SEP-22 Main Contact: Company Phone#: Company Fax#:

Line	Description	Profile	Waste Codes	ΠΝ/ΝΑ		04.	
1	TRANSPORT			UNINA	Type - Size	Qty	UN
2	PACE CAN OIL				-	1.5	HR
2	RAGS CAVIOL	35656	252T	N/A	DM - 205	1	DM
3	USED OIL WITH DEBRIS	35657	251T	NI/A	DM 205		Divi
			2011	NA	DIVI - 205	1	DM

#### **Pickup Site Address**

Pickup Company # 13136 Saint James Civic Centre 2055 Ness Avenue Winnipeg, MB R3J 0Z2

MB. Generator No: MBG10294 Pickup Contact Larry Santucci Pickup Phone# 204-471-7617

Pickup Cell#:

**Pickup Notes** 

Notes:

P/O#: -

#### **Customer Service Special Instructions:**

What am I doing? Picking up one drum of oily rags, and one drum of used oil with debris in it. Area is pretty w et right now (Sept. 21st), give it a week or two to dry up. Pictures in schedule folder

11:35 Am-

Part of

C = Batteries on Pallets— Equivalency Certificate # SU 10981 (Ren. 4)

B = Tubskids— Equivalency Certificate # SU 7133 (Ren. 11) A = Labpacks & Gaylords—Equivalency Certificate # SU 11161 (Ren. 5)

Date: OC 5 )7h 2

Consignor (Print Name): JEreny

I hereby declare that the contents of this consignment are fully and accurately described above by the proper shipping name, are properly classified and package, have dangerous good safety marks properly affixed or displayed on them, and are in all respects in proper condition for transport according to the Transportation of Dangerous Goods Regulations

## 24 HOUR NUMBER 204-957-6327

										1/ Maggscontaminated w/oil W/A//A/00 k	V/A (Debris Genter waste w/o'i) W/A/V/A 100 1	N No. Shipping Name Class PG Quantity UI Sub/ Sub/ Shipped L/ Class / Class PG Quantity UI	Consignor Address: 2055 Ness Ave	annental Consignor Name: 5+ JOINOS CIVIC CENTRE
										10,	1	nits Pack. KG No.		
										95958	15958	Profile #	Tech: 39,	en Tro
											2828351	Manifest #	mes kahler	è
TO DM	. TO	L/P DM	L/P DM TO	L/P DM TO	L/P DM TO	L/I TO	TO	195	1 B L	- Jor	-8-	EC#		
BK BC	BK	BK	BC BK	BC PL BK	BK PL BG	BK BC	BC	P BK PL BG	P BK M PL BC	BC BK	D BC BK	Туре		

22110121721721212121	constitut / consignment are huly and accurately described according to approximate interimonente in the second sec
21 Date shipped / Date drapdetion Time / Heure Scheduled annual date / Date dramwe pre Year / Année   Month / Mols   Day / Jour   A.M.   PPM   Year / Année   Month / Mols   Day / Jour	(w) (w) Tel. No. / V de tel. (where d'autocode peson (smit)) Tel. No. / V de tel. (where d'autocode peson (smit)) Tel. No. / V de tel. (where d'autocode peson (smit)) Tel. No. / V de tel. (where d'autocode peson (smit)) Tel. No. / V de tel. (where d'autocode peson (smit)) Tel. No. / V de tel. (where d'autocode peson (smit)) Tel. No. / V de tel. (where d'autocode peson (smit)) Tel. No. / V de tel. (where d'autocode peson (smit)) Tel. No. / V de tel. (where d'autocode peson (smit)) Tel. No. / V de tel. (where d'autocode peson (smit)) Tel. No. / V de tel. (where d'autocode peson (smit)) Tel. No. / V de tel. (where d'autocode peson (smit)) Tel. No. / V de tel. (where d'autocode peson (smit)) Tel. No. / V de tel. (where d'autocode peson (smit)) Tel. No. / V de tel. (where d'autocode peson (smit)) Tel. No. / V de tel. (where d'autocode peson (smit)) Tel. No. / V de tel. (where d'autocode peson (smit)) Tel. No. / V de tel. (where d'autocode peson (smit)) Tel. No. / V de tel. (where d'autocode peson (smit)) Tel. (where d'autocode peson (smit)) Tel. No. / V de tel. (where d'autocode peson (smit)) Tel. No. / V de tel. (where d'autocode peson (smit))
Special handling / Manutantion spéciale	
Signature Attito Earling Sando	anational use only
Receiver / consignee certification : / certify that the information contained in Part C is correct and complete. Attestation du réceptionnaire : / castinatine	Nudee No.         Net/se Une No         Shipment         Or / De         D or R code         Code         Annexe VIII de Bâle         H code         Y code         Epont         Import         Customs code(s)           Nudee No.         Ne de light de         Envoir         Or / De         Code D ou R         Ode C         ou Code OCDE         Code H         Code H         Code H         Code H         Code // De
If handling code "Other" (specify) Si code de manufamion « autre » (specifier)	11 12 13 14 15 18 17 National code in 18 19 19
100 - bi	21 0 1 2X and the second and a second and a second and a second a
Ouantitie repue     Lor / ou kig Lor / ou kig Unities     Comments Code / Code Unities     Spinent Enrol Society / Code Hadde de manuterition     Spinent Enrol Accepted Refused     Pack Refused     Pack Pack       1000     F51     Lg     -     01     Refused     Refused     Fack	Appelation regenerative Casses(S) sub N° NU de risque Quantité expedidee Unités No. N° Codes La prive Casses(S) sub N° NU de risque Quantité expedidee Unités No. N° Codes Etal phys. State de risque Quantité expedidee Unités No. N° Codes Etal phys. State de risque Quantité expedidee Unités No. N° Codes Etal phys. State de risque Quantité expedidee Unités No. N° Codes Etal phys. State de risque Quantité expedidee Unités No. N° Codes Etal phys. State de risque Quantité expedidee Unités No. N° Codes Etal phys. State de risque Quantité expedidee Unités No. N° Codes Etal phys. State de risque Quantité expedidee Unités No. N° Codes Etal phys. State de risque Quantité expedidee Unités No. N° Codes Etal phys. State de risque Appelation réglementaire Casses(S) sub N° NU de risque Quantité expedidee Unités No. N° Codes Etal phys. State de risque Appelation réglementaire Casses(S) sub N° NU de risque Quantité expedidee Unités No. N° Codes Etal phys. State de risque Appelation réglementaire Casses(S) sub N° NU de risque Quantité expedidee Unités No. N° Codes Etal phys. State de risque Appelation réglementaire Casses(S) sub N° NU de risque Quantité expedidee Unités No. N° Codes Etal phys. State de risque Appelation réglementaire Casses(S) sub N° NU de risque Appelation réglementaire Casses(S) sub N°
If waste or recyclable material to be transferred, specify intended 3d Registration No./Provincial ID company name/ SI ies dechets ou matiéres recyclables doivent être N <sup>®</sup> d'immatriculation/d'il provi transfertes, préciser le nom du destinataire	dronkue ress i Adresse du lieu de destination ress i Adresse du lieu de destination Province Prostal code / Code postal D 2 10 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Tory     Tickey     Ave       Date received / Date de récordion     Time / Heure       Year / Année     Month / Mois     Day / Jour       2     2     1     0       1     4     1     2	see postale City / Ville Province Ed. B sone exacts et complets. B sone exacts et complets. Name of authorized person (print): Name of authorized person (pr
E-mail / Courned electronique Tel. No. / N° de tel. Reconving sile address / Adresse du lieu de destination Per 1 P n? 11 - 11 - 11 - 11 - 11 - 11 - 11 - 1	relative priori     2     Registration No. / Provincial ID No.     Point dentée     Found dentée       relative     2     Registration No. / Provincial U. provincial de provinci de provinci
S Windiced MR R1P 062	pe du lieu de l'experiment pe du lieu de l'experiment province
Maiing address / Adresse postale	Tel. No. / N. Grave Control Control Prov. 20 Trainer-Raitor Ruo. 1 Trainer-Raitor No. 1 Train
Receiver / consignee information same as In PartA Les reseignements du réceptionnaire / destinataire sont les mêmes qu'à la Partie A Ves / Oui No, complete the box below / Non, remptir le case c-dessous	e Postal code / Code postal Mailing address / Adresse postale City / Vile Province Postal code / Code postal Code postal City / Vile Province Postal code / Code postal Code postal Code postal City / Vile Province Resta code / Code postal Code postal City / Vile Province Resta code / Code postal Code postal City / Vile Province Resta code / Code postal City / Vile Province Resta code / Code postal City / Vile Province Resta code / Code postal City / Vile Province Resta code / Code postal City / Vile Province Resta code / Code postal City / Vile Province Resta code / Code postal City / Vile Province Resta code / Code postal City / Vile Province Resta code / Code postal City / Vile Province Resta code / Code postal City / Vile Province Resta code / Code postal City / Vile Province Resta code / Code postal City / Vile Province Resta code / Code postal City / Vile Province Resta code / Code postal City / Vile Province Resta code / Code postal City / Vile Resta code / City / Vile Resta code / Code postal City / Vile Resta code / Code postal City / Vile Resta code / Code postal City / Vile Resta code / Ci
C Receptionnaire / destinataire Registration No. / Provincial /D No. N° d'Immatriculation - d'id. provincial	Nº d'immaincuisses
3 Reference Nos of ofter movement document(s)/manifest(s) used / Nº de réference des autres documents de mouvement/manifestes utilisés	Registration No. / Provincial ID No. Registration No. / Provincial ID No. B Transporteur N <sup>a</sup> d'Immatriculation - d'id. provincial N <sup>a</sup> d'Immatriculation - d'id. provincial

## ATTACHMENT

### CONDITIONS AND LIMITATIONS

F



#### STANDARD LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY

WSP Canada Inc. ("WSP") prepared this report solely for the use of the intended recipient, City of Winnipeg, in accordance with the professional services agreement between the parties. In the event a contract has not been executed, the parties agree that the WSP General Terms for Consultant shall govern their business relationship which was provided to you prior to the preparation of this report.

The report is intended to be used in its entirety. No excerpts may be taken to be representative of the findings in the assessment.

The conclusions presented in this report are based on work performed by trained, professional and technical staff, in accordance with their reasonable interpretation of current and accepted engineering and scientific practices at the time the work was performed.

The content and opinions contained in the present report are based on the observations and/or information available to WSP at the time of preparation, using investigation techniques and engineering analysis methods consistent with those ordinarily exercised by WSP and other engineering/scientific practitioners working under similar conditions, and subject to the same time, financial and physical constraints applicable to this project.

WSP disclaims any obligation to update this report if, after the date of this report, any conditions appear to differ significantly from those presented in this report; however, WSP reserves the right to amend or supplement this report based on additional information, documentation or evidence.

WSP makes no other representations whatsoever concerning the legal significance of its findings.

The intended recipient is solely responsible for the disclosure of any information contained in this report. If a third party makes use of, relies on, or makes decisions in accordance with this report, said third party is solely responsible for such use, reliance or decisions. WSP does not accept responsibility for damages, if any, suffered by any third party as a result of decisions made or actions taken by said third party based on this report.

WSP has provided services to the intended recipient in accordance with the professional services agreement between the parties and in a manner consistent with that degree of care, skill and diligence normally provided by members of the same profession performing the same or comparable services in respect of projects of a similar nature in similar circumstances. It is understood and agreed by WSP and the recipient of this report that WSP provides no warranty, express or implied, of any kind. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, it is agreed and understood by WSP and the recipient of this report that WSP makes no representation or warranty whatsoever as to the sufficiency of its scope of work for the purpose sought by the recipient of this report.

In preparing this report, WSP has relied in good faith on information provided by others, as noted in the report. WSP has reasonably assumed that the information provided is correct and WSP is not responsible for the accuracy or completeness of such information.

Benchmark and elevations used in this report are primarily to establish relative elevation differences between the specific testing and/or sampling locations and should not be used for other purposes, such as grading, excavating, construction, planning, development, etc.

disclaims any responsibility for consequential financial effects on transactions or property values, or requirements for follow-up actions /or costs.



The original of this digital file will be kept by WSP for a period of not less than 10 years. As the digital file transmitted to the intended recipient is no longer under the control of WSP, its integrity cannot be assured. As such, WSP does not guarantee any modifications made to this digital file subsequent to its transmission to the intended recipient.

This limitations statement is considered an integral part of this report.